Megan Lederhose

EEEERTERES

From: Mansfield Electorate Office <Mansfield@parliament.gld.gov.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 19 December 2018 5:56 PM

To: Evan Moorhead; Ben Coates; adam.obeid@qld.alp.org.au
Subject: FW: Mansfield Schools Traffic Management

Attachments: 20171102_19095737 - Copy - cropped.jpg

FYl

Corrine

Corrine McMillan MP (B.d; M.Ed.; IP{Qual)) 2015 Churchill Fellow
Member for Mansfield

Corrine McMillan MP

Member for Mansfield

Léading Our Community Listeni'ng, elivering

Mail: 12 Mount Gravatt-Capalaba Road: Upper Mount Gravatt QLD 2 Phone: (07) 3414 3100

Web: www.corrinemcemillan.comi.atl Email: mansfield@pariiarignt gid.gov.au 0G0 McMillanaManstield

Like Corrine’s Facebook page to keep up to date. https://wwiw_facebook.com/McMillan4Mansfield/

Click here to take part in Corrine’s community survey.

From: Adrian Schrinner [mailto:Adrian.Schrinner@hrisbane.qld.gov.aul

Sent: Wednesday, 19 December 2018 8:58 AM

To: Mansfield Electorate Office <Mansfield @parliarment.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Ross.Vasta.MP@aph.gov.au; kamorl@=aqg.edu.au; ktankl@eq.edu.au; Chandler Ward Office
<chandler.ward@bcc.gld.gov.au>

Subject: Mansfield Schools Traffic Management

Good afternoon Corrine

Thank you for the opportunity to mest with both Mansfield State and High Schools in regards to their traffic
management concerns.

Unfortunately I was away from Brisbane at the time and was unable to attend, however, I was glad Rachael Lister
could attend as my representative,

Council has been and will continue to work very closely with the schools to ensure that their safety and traffic
concerns are managed and alleviated where possible.

As you can appreciaie many issues stem from having two large and growing schools located extremely close together
on busy suburban roads. This is a legacy issue that we cannot change.

In 2016, Council’s Transport Planning and Operations Team (TPO) worked with both schools to develop a School
Traffic Management Plan.

These documents are constantly changing and being up-date to reflect the current school goals and needs while
addressing any concerns as they arise.

Together the Schools and Council have achieved a number of action plans including but limited to the following:
¢ Timed ban on right turns into the school car parks from Ham Road.
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¢ Solid centre road line marking on crest of Ham Road to prevent dangerous U-turns.
Changed time of operation of Ham Road and Broadwater Road bus zones to provide safer passenger transport
opportunities between 7:00am and 9:00am.

¢ Enlarged capacity of centre refuge island on Broadwater Road to accommodate the safe the movement of
students. Currently investigating into mid-block traffic signals.

e Optimised pedestrian movement phase of traffic signals at Ham and Broadwater Road intersection including
the installation of pedestrian countdown timers.

e Taken actions to resolve traffic concerns for local surrounding streets as raised by residents.

e Mansfield State School top car park has changed No Parking signs to Loading Zone signs to eliminate driver

confusion and extra left turning allowance into the Stop Drop and Go Zone. A 10km/h sign’as also been

installed.

Installed marked parking bays on both sides of Ham Road to allow for better management of parking space.

Reinstated parking along Ham Road near Rupari Street and installing marked parking bays along Ham Road

Additional enforcement for parking violations

Council worked with Mansfield SHS when bell times changes to ensure bus operaters schedules were

modified accordingly.

Further to these actions, in June 2014, Lord Mayor Graham Quirk established the Brisbane Parking Taskforce to
advise Council how to respond to parking issues and to best manage on-street parking in the future. The Taskforce
was chaired by myself and included representatives from RACQ, P&C’s Queensland, National Retail Association,
Multicap, Taxi Council Queensland, Transport Workers Union, Chamber of Commerce and Industry Queensland,
Parking Australia and Brisbane Transport.

The Brisbane Parking Taskforce delivered its report in December 2014. 5Recommendations were made

regarding School Parking which highlighted safety concerns that acknowledge as more parents drive their children to
and from school it is increasing congestion for the school and local residents. To read more about the Parking
Taskforce in particular Section 7 — School Parking, please use thislink to open the report:

https://www.brisbane.qld.gov.au/sites/default/files/20152801 paiking taskforce recommendation report.pdf

As highlighted by the Parking Taskforce, a problem exists whet schools are being expanded but not making provision
for extra parking or expanded drop-off facilities. Recommendation 33 (page 38) states “Work with the Queensland
Government to ensure that school expansion and redevelopment projects include appropriate provision of off-street
parking”.

As you know, both State Schools in Mansfield have been expanded significantly in recent years and this expansion
continues with the addition of new buildings. Despite this ongoing expansion, the Queensland Government have not
provided extra car parking or expanded drop-off facilities, nor has the State consulted Council regarding these
important issues. To the contrary, much of the expansion has occurred under Ministerial designations whereby the
State Government exempts itself from normai planning requirements or the need to carry out any meaningful
community consultation.

It is important that you are aware that non-government schools wishing to expand are generally expected to lodge
development applications for Councit approval. As part of this process, Council expects these schools to cater for any
increased demand by demonstrating how their existing car parkmg or drop-off facilities will cope. If they cannot
demonstrate a satisfactory outcone they are expected to invest in expanding their existing parking and/or drop-off
facilities. Tn addition, thev are exnactad to nay infrastructure contributions to Conneil 0 heln fund infrastructnre
upgrades identified in the Local Government Infrastructure Plan (LGIP). Once again, the State Government exempts
itself from the requirement tc-coniribute towards infrastructure upgrades.

When you consider there are literally hundreds of state schools across Brisbane, many of which continue to expand,
the impacts on surrounding communities are significant and are a great source of concern to all Councillors.

Given the State Govermment’s apparent lack of consideration of traffic and parking issues beyond the school gate,
Council proactively runs an important travel behaviour change program, known as Active School Travel.

The Active School Travel (AST) program offers Brisbane primary schools a suite of free resources, tools and incentives
to enable students, parents, carers and teachers to leave the car at home and actively travel to school. It’s all about
creating healthier, more active students and families, increasing road safety awareness, safer streets and continuing to
tackle traffic congestion. The award-winning three-year program promotes road safety and sustainable and healthy
travel options such as walking, cycling, scootering, carpooling and public transport. To learn more about this program
please visit Council’s website via this link:
https://www.brisbane.qld.gov.au/traffic-transport/public-transport/school-transport/active-school-travel-program
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You will be pleased to know that Mansfield State School, through this program, achieved the New School of the Year
2017 award as well as an award for the highest percentage of active travel in a large school.
Please find attached a photo of the school accepting their trophy and prizes.

In summary, I can confirm that Council will continue our successful working relationships with both Mansfield State
School and High School to ensure that we make positive improvements aimed at keeping students safe as they move
to and from school.

Kind regards

Adrian Schrinner

Deputy Mayor

Councillor for Chandler Ward
Chairman, Public and Active Transport
Brisbane City Council

Shop 8, 14 Millennium Boulevard
Carindale QLD 4152

Tel: 3407 1400

The contents of this email message and any aticchments are intended only for the addressee and may be
confidential, private or the subject of copyright, If you have received this email in error please notify
Brisbane City Council, by replying to the sender or calling +61 7 3403 8888, and delete all copies of the
e-mail and any attachments.

Consider the environment before you print-this email.
NOTICE - This e-mail and any attachments (are confidential and only for.the use of the addressee.

If you have received this e-mail in error, yau are strictly prohibited from using, forwarding, printing, copying or dealing in anyway whatsoever with it, and are
requested to reply immediateiy by e-rrail to'the sender or by telephone to the Parliamentary Service on +61 7 3553 6000.

Any views expressed in this e-mail are the author's, except where the e-mail makes it clear otherwise. The unauthorised publication of an e-mail and any
attachments generated for the ofiicial functions of the Parliamentary Service, the Legislative Assembly, its Committees or Members may constitute a
contempt of the Queens!land Parliarnent. If the information contained in this e-mail and any attachments becomes the subject of any request under Right to
information legislation; the\authicr or the Parliamentary Service should be notified.

It is the addressee's responsibility to scan this message for viruses. The Parliamentary Service does not warrant that the information is free from any
virus,defect or error.
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Megan Lederhose

[

From: Rodney HOngOﬂ CTPI - Personal Information
Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 8:29 AM

To: Evan Moorhead

Cc: Katelyn Dougherty; Jacqueline Mahon
Subject: FW: this morning

As discussed.

Rodney Hodgson | Principal

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers SEEEES
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brisbane QLD 4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

EHIEHIEE

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international SO 8001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this émailin error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice-Blackbusn's privacy policy, click here: hitp:/iwww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx

From: Rodney Hodgson

Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 8:00 AM

To: Janene Hillhouse (Janene.Hillhouse @oir.qld.geviau) <}anene.Hillhouse @oir.gld.gov.au>
Cc: Paul Goldsbrough (Paul.Goldsbrough@oir.qgld.gov:au) <Paul.Goldsbrough@oir.qld.gov.au>;
CTPI - CTPI - Persunal Information

Bersonal @moray.com.au; Jacqueline Mahon
gfor ation . .
abject: this morning

Hi Janene

The documents came through, regrettably, very late.

Members of a panel such as this weuld ideally be expected to consult with other stakeholders (in my case, at least
committee members of ALA). This has’been rendered impossible by the late forwarding of the materials.

In my view, the meeting shotild be postponed. | have spoken with Michael Garbett this morning. The QLS received
their materials on Friday, tco. Michael shares my view about, and request for postponement.

Can you please confirni-agreement to postpone, and suggest some alternate dates over the next few weeks?
Regards, Rod.

Rodney Hodgsor: | Principal

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers [x] ===
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brisbane QLD 4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

EREEHIEE
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Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international 1SO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.
This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,

dissermination, forwarding, printing or copying of this emait is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: http:f#iwww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-

policy.aspx
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Megan Lederhose

o

From: Evan Moorhead CTPI - Personal Information

Sent: Wednesday, 11 July 2018 2:00 PM

To: : Evan Moorhead

Subject: Fwd: Legal fees info as discussed

Attachments: Regulatory-Guide-3-Charging-Fees-in-Speculative-Personal-Injury-Matters-v2-

May-2013 (1).pdf; doc20180207_QLS_Costs_Guide_2014_Edition.pdf

—————————— Forwarded message ----------
Erom: Rodney HOngOI"\ CTPI - Personal Information
Date: Tue, Jul 10, 2018 at 4:18 PM
Subject: Legal fees info as discussed

TO: "evan.moorheadCTPI - Personal Information

Hi Evan

As discussed, the Peetz report contains a recommendation about legal fees.

There already exist multiple and effective layers of protection for injured workers.

e | have attached the LSC regulatory guide — Charging Fees in Speculative Personal Injury Matters;
e QLS Cost Guide attached;

e  Section (3.4) of the Legal Profession Act s also relevant.

Reports in analogous jurisdictions such as the CTP scheme have demonstrated:

o //The highest levels of satisfaction from clients were from the work and effectiveness of their

lawyer,

e The lowest satisfaction levels can be attributed to insurer and/or employer behaviours

e The priority for regulators and the government should be to ensure that insurers’ claims
processes and the work of insurers is improved. | would emphasise that generally, Workcover Qld

does a good job

» People are clear that they value the right to legal representation and the advocacy that lawyers

provide.
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Critically, lawyers’ fees are already the subject of very substantial regulatory and consumer protection oversight and we
note in that regard:

e Allclients are required to sign a formal costs agreement accompanied by a disclosure notice
in which a reasonable estimate of fees is given.

¢ Acooling off period applies to contractual relationships with lawyers.

*  The Workcover legislation contains provisions that require the lawyer to provide an updated
statement of fees prior to any compulsory alternative dispute resolution precess and an estimate
of future costs likely to be incurred.

e There is a statutory cap (the 50% rule referred to before} cn legal fees. It should be
emphasised this is a statutory cap and not a contingency fee or:set percentage.

e  Additional layers of protection exist for claimants under a legal or financial disability with the
court and public trustee approving costs that have been incurred. New and enhanced safeguards
are contained within the NIIS amendments to the legislation.

By those methods; fees, refunds and outlays are fully disclosed to clients: consumers of legal services have multifaceted
and stringent protections. Lawyers who overcharge have been the subject of serious disciplinary action, and rightly so;
this also demonstrates that the existing structures are working well.

These high levels of legal costs regulation in Queensland gives consumers, regulators and government confidence
about the nature of current arrangement and in conjunction with- MAIC own consumer data which supports the fact that
consumers are satisfied with current arrangements mean that current arrangements are appropriate.

Happy to discuss further.

Cheers,
Rod

Rodney Hodgson | Principa!

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyzrs
Level 8, 179 Narth Quay,/Brisbane QLD 4000
www.mauriceblackbirn.com.au

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the intemational 1ISO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.
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This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way, For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: hitp://wwnw. mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-

policy.aspx
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Megan Lederhose

From: David Barbagallo

Sent: Thursday, 31 May 2018 6:52 PM
To: Evan Moorhead

Subject: RE: Invite List for AQP event

Evan, Tourism ?? db

David Barbagallo
< pa / Chief-of-Staff

& Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MP
Y A Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade
AUDAX AV FIDELIS P 07 3719 7015

Queensland 1 william Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Government  po Box 15185 City East QLD 4002

From: Evan Moorhead

Sent: Thursday, 31 May 2018 1:39 PM

To: David Barbagallo <David.Barbagallo@ministerial.qld.govau>
Subject: Invite List for AQP event

Importance: High

Still waiting on stakeholder list from De Brenni. Let me know if these work or not.

| need to get them to DPC tomorrow.

AQP Invite List

General

Clark Kirby, Village Roadshow
Kylie Pashen, Remserv

Rod Hodgson, Maurice Blackburn
Ros McLennan QCU

Alex Scott, Together

John Battams, ALP
Julie-Anne Camplbeil, ALP
Michael Hillier, KPMG

Deb Smith, PwC

Paul Laxon, EY

Alison de Groote, EY

Jobs & Infrastructure

Members of the Premier’s Business Advisory Council
Don O’Rorke, Consolidated Property

Paul Venus, Holding Redlich Lawyers

Rhys Turner, APPEA
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Wes Ballantyne, Transurban
Chelsey Drake, Partner Allens
Laura O’Brien, Deloitte

Leisel Moorhead, QIC

Simone Desmarchelier, Director QIC
Karla Fraser, Partner Allens
Franki Ganter, Partner Allens
Mike Kissane, Lead Partner, DAE
Steve Kanowski, Partner, DAE
Basil K, Cubic Transportation
Nicholas Ng, ALlens

Bill McCredie, Allens

Responsive Government

Stephen Tait CCIQ

Kate Whittle CCIQ

Neil Glentworth, GWI

Neil Makepeace, GWI

Ms Maree Adshead, Queensland Small Business Champion

Great Barrier Reef

WWF

Tim Seelig, Queensland Conservation Council
Nick Heath, AMCS

Gemma Plesman, TWS

Education

Bruce Davidson, Davidson Recruitment

Alys Gagnon, The Parenthood

Graham Moloney, Queensland Teachers Uiiion
Gary Bullock UV

Health

Michelle Trute, Diabetes Queé&nsiand

Beth Mohle, Queensland Nurses Jnion

AMA President

Heart Foundation

Stroke Foundation

Deadly Choices & IUIH

Belinda Drew - Community Services Industry Alliance
QCOSS

Richard Nelscn - National Disability Service
Paige Armstrorig - Queenslanders with Disability

Safer Communities
lan Leavers, QPU
Queensland Law Society
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Evan Moorhead
&7jmn Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MP

& Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade
) P 07 3719 7013 IVCTPI - Personal Information
O 9, 1
RUDAX AT TIDELTS 1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
Government
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Megan Lederhose

From: Evan Moorhead

Sent: Monday, 26 February 2018 10:13 AM
To: Carly Donaldson

Subject: Re: Meeting with Ben Hubbard in March
Hi Carly

Let’s meet at 1 William St.
Evan Moorhead

On 26 Feb 2018, at 7:23 am, Carly Donaldson CTP! - Personal information wrote:

Morning Evan
Thank you for your reply and confirmation of your email address.

| will send through a diary invite for a coffee at 10.30am on the 27" March. Ben is happy to meet
somewhere that suits you, are you able to suggest a suitable’place? He will be coming straight from
the airport.

Many thanks

Carly Donaldson | Executive Assistant

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Level 21, 380 La Trobe Street, Melbourne YaC 3000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

<image004.jpg> <image005.jpg> <image006.jpg>

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australignlaw firm certified to the international ISO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Pleasc consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it ar2 corifidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, farwarding, printing or copyingofinis/email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printc
copy and do not disclose or use its information in.20y way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy palicy, click here: http:/iwww.mauriceblackburn.com.aufprivacy-
policy.aspx

THE MELBOURNE OFFICE HAS MOVED _
Maurice Blackburn's Melbourne office has moved to 380 LaTrobe Street in 2018. The phone, fax and postal addres:

will remain the same.

From: E'\/al'} Mocrhead CTPI - Personal Information
Sent: Thursday, 22 February 2018 4:08 PM

To: Carly'Donaldson

Subject: Re: Meeting with Ben Hubbard in March

Hi Carly,
My new job is great - I am free anytime on those days. Let me know what suits Ben.

You can get me on evan.moorhead@ministerial.qld.gov.au
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Evan

On Thu, Feb 22, 2018 at 12:55 PM, Carly Donaldson

CTPI - Personal Information WI'OtC:

Dear Evan

I hope this email finds you well. | apologise for the email to your personal email address however the
work email address we previously had bounced back.

Ben Hubbard will be up in our Brisbane office on the 27 and 28t of March and was wondering if
would have a free time in your calendar to catch up for a coffee? His diary is flexible at this stage so
he is happy to work in with you if you are available.

| look forward to hearing from you.

Kind regards

Carly Donaldson | Executive Assistant

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Level 21, 380 La Trobe Street, Melbourrie VIC. 3000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

<image007.jpg> <image008,jpg> <image009.jpg>

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Austraiian law firm certified to the international 1ISO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon'neutral, Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted wiirtit are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whorn it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding,printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any print¢
copy and do not discloss or lise its irformation in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: http://www.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx

THE MELBGYURNE OFFICE HAS MOVED
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

Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 8:33 AM

To: Rodney Hodgson

Cc: Katelyn Dougherty; Jacqueline Mahon
Subject: RE: this morning

Spoke to Sharon. She and Katelyn are working to resolve.

Evan Moorhead :
TS < Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MP

&4 2 Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade

- P 073719 7013 M CTPI - Personal Information
B A\ - .
ZUDAT AT FIDELLS 1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
Government

CTPI - Personal Information

From: Rodney Hodgson

Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 8:29 AM

To: Evan Moorhead <Evan.Moorhead@ministerial.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Katelyn Dougherty <Katelyn.Dougherty@ministerial.gld.gov.au>; Jacqueline Mahon

CTPI - Personal Information

Subject: FW: this morning

As discussed.

Rodney Hodgson | Principal

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers [x] ==
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brisbane QLD-4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

EERIEERIE]

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Austraiian, law firm certified to the international 1ISO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted wittit are corfidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or conying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in efror please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its/information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: http:/Awww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx

From: Rodney Hedgson

Sent: Monday, 21 Nay 2018 8:00 AM

To: Janene Hillhouse (Janene.Hillhouse @oir.gld.gov.au) <Janene.Hillhouse @oir.gld.gov.au>
Cc: Paul Goldsbrough (Paul.Goldsbrough@oir.ald.gov.au) <Paul.Goldsbrough@oir.gld.gov.au>;
CTPI - Personal i@ moray.com.au; Jacqueline Mahon TF! - Persenalinformation

Information

Subject: this morning

Hi Janene

The documents came through, regrettably, very late.
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Members of a panel such as this would ideally be expected to consult with other stakeholders (in my case, at least
committee members of ALA). This has been rendered impossible by the late forwarding of the materials.

In my view, the meeting should be postponed. | have spoken with Michael Garbett this morning. The QLS received
their materials on Friday, too. Michael shares my view about, and request for postponement.

Can you please confirm agreement to postpone, and suggest some alternate dates over the next few weeks?
Regards, Rod.

Rodney Hodgson | Principal

CTPI - Personal Information

¥

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers [x] ===
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brisbane QLD 4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

=18 =] | H]

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international ISO 9001:2008 quality-standard.

We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity towhom it is addressed. If yau are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in errar pleace-netify the sender by reply email, delete the ernail, destroy any printed

copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's nrivacy poiicy, click here: http:/Avww.mauriceblackbum.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx
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Megan Lederhose

From: Jade Thompson CTPI - Personél Information
Sent: Thursday, 28 June 2018 3:36 PM
To: Evan Moorhead

Subject: RE: Wage theft

At this stage it's the Plumbers, Meaties, TWU, UV, AMWU and Together but | understand he was alss intending to
speak to the AWU this week.

Jade Thompson | National Media Manager

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brishane QLD 4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international 1SO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing thisemail:

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the emall, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: http:/Mww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx

From: Evan Moorhead [mailto:Evan.Moorhead@ministerial.gid.aov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 28 June 2018 3:33 PM

To: Jade Thompson

Subject: Wage theft

Hi Jade,

Which unions are Giri representing at the \Wage Theft Inquiry?

Evan Moorhead
Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MP
Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade

P07 3719 7015 E; C1 2l - Personal Information

i 1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Rox 15185/ City East QLD 4002
Government

This email, together with any attachments, is intended for the named recipient(s) only; and may contain
privileged and contidential information. If received in error, you are asked to inform the sender as quickly
as possible and delete this email and any copies of this from your computer system network.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it;
any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and /or publication of this email is also prohibited.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the
Queensland Government.
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Please consider the environment before printing this email.
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Pages 161 through 203 redacted for the following reasons:

s.68(4)(c) - document subject to copyright provisions - access by inspection only.



Megan Lederhose

From: Ben Hubbard CTPI - Personal Information

Sent: Friday, 7 September 2018 11:12 AM

To: Evan Moorhead; James Sullivan

Subject: FW: Maurice Blackburn submission to the Qld Termination of Pregnancy Bill 2018
Attachments: 05.09.18 - Maurice Blackburn submission to the Termination of Pregnancy Bill.pdf
Evan, Jimmy

| wanted to get this on to your radar. This submission has gone to the Health Communities et¢/C'tee of the Parliament
and we expect it to get a bit of profile.

We've got a significant history with the same issue down south.

Let me know if you or any of the colleagues want a briefing from our experts. It may also be something AGD want to
get across too.

Kind regards

Ben

From: Katie Robertson
Sent: Wednesday, 5 September 2018 12:34 PM

CTPI - Personal Information

To: Ben Hubbard P! - Personal Information Likeriy Sanger

CC: Jennifer KanisCTP' - Personal Information ‘Sa‘_ah Atkinson ETRI: Personallinformation

Paloma COIe CTPI - Personal Information Miche”e V\,llght CTPI - Personal Information Jade
Thompson CTPI - Personal Information Glrl Siva raman CTPI - Personal Information

JOSh Bomstein CTPI - Personal Information Peter Newlmg CTPI - Personal Information

Christine Concha
Subject: Maurice Blackburn submission to the Qid Termination of Pregnancy Bill 2018

CTPI - Personal Information

Dear all,

Please find attached a copy of our submission made today to the Queensland Termination of Pregnancy Bill 2018.
This has been drafted as a joint initiative between the Queensland Women’s Network members Sarah Atkinson and
Paloma Cole, and SJP (with thanks to Peter Newling).

As you may be aware, the Palaszszuk government recently introduced a Bill to decriminalise abortion and introduce
safe access zones around terrninaticn facilities (within which certain conduct by anti-abortion protestors is prohibited
within a radius of 150 m).

We made a deliberate decision-to limit the scope of our submission to the Bill's safe access zone provisions. Given
our previous history acting an behalf of the Fertility Control Clinic in Melbourne and involvement in pushing for
legislative change in Victoria (and other states re similar legislation) we felt this was where we could best value add.

[n a nutshell, the position we take in the submission is —

o We commend the Qld government for introducing law reforms targeted to ensure patients can access health
care and termination services safely;

e Safe access zones are important not only for patients — but also staff of health care facilities. This is a
workplace safety issue;

+ Although we welcome the inclusion of safe access zones in the draft legislation, we are concerned that the
Bill as currently drafted will not adequately prevent conduct likely to cause harm.

There has been a fairly tight turn-around for this submission. The Committee will be conducting public hearings next
week — we are hoping to be invited.
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Happy to answer any questions or concerns you may have — please don't hesitate to get in touch.
Kind regards,

Katie

Katie Robertson | Senior Associate

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Level 21, 380 La Trobe Street, Melbourne VIC 3000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international (SO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carhon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressad. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy palicy, click here: hitp:/Avww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx

From: Katie Robertson
Sent: Wednesday, 5 September 2018 11:54 AM
To: 'health@parliament.qld.gov.au' <health@parliament.gld.gov.au>

Cc: Sarah Atkinson €TP! - Personal Information Paioma Cole
Newling CTPI - Personal Information

CTPI - Personal Information

Peter

Subject: Maurice Blackburn submission to the Termination of Pregnancy Bill

Dear Sir / Madam,
Re: Maurice Blackburn submission to the Queensland Termination of Pregnancy Bill 2018

Thank you for the opportunity to contribute to the Heaith, Communities, Disability Services and Domestic and Family
Violence Prevention Committee’s consideration of the Termination of Pregnancy Bill 2018.

Please find our submission attached.

We are keen to offer our experience and expertise as legal professionals to the Committee. We would welcome the
opportunity to meet with the Commiitee-and elaborate on our insights.

Yours faithfully,

Katie Robertson | Senior Associate

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Level 21, 380 L& Trobe Street, Melbourne VIC 3000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international ISO 9001:2008 quality standard.

We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or enfity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed

copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Biackburn's privacy policy, click here: hitp:/iwww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx
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Maurice Elackburn Pty Limited
ABN 21 105657 949

Level 21

5 September 2018 380 Latrobe Street
Melbourne VIC 3000

DX 466 Melbourne
T (03) 9605 2700
F (03) 9258 9600

Committee Secretary

Health, Communities, Disability Services and Domestic and Family Violence Prevention

Committee

Parliament House

George Street

BRISBANE QLD 4000

By email: health@parliament.qld.gov.au

Dear Sir/Madam,

Thank you for the opportunity to contribute 16 the iHealth, Communities, Disability Services
and Domestic and Family Violence Prevention Committee’s consideration of the Termination
of Pregnancy Bill 2018.

As you will know, Maurice Blackburn Pty Ltd is a plaintiff law firm with 31 permanent offices
and 29 visiting offices throughout all mainland States and Territories. The firm specialises in
personal injuries, medical neglicence, employment and industrial law, dust diseases,
superannuation (particularly total and permanent disability claims), negligent financial and
other advice, and consumer and commercial class actions. The firm also has a substantial
Social Justice Practice.

Maurice Blackburn emgloys over 1000 staff, including approximately 330 lawyers who
provide advice and assistance to thousands of clients each year. The advice services are
often provided free of chaige as it is firm policy in many areas to give the first consultation for
free.

Relevantly, our Social Justice Practice has been instrumental in arguing for the
establishmeént of safe access zones around termination services in other Australian
jurisdictioris.We have direct experience acting for the Victorian Fertility Control Clinic (FCC)
in couit proceedings that were a catalyst for crucial legislative change in Victoria. We have
witriessed first-hand the significant difference safe access zones have made to the lives of
patients-and healthcare professionals.

We note that, in introducing the Bill, Attorney-General and Minister for Justice, Hon. Yvette
D’Ath said: “The Palaszczuk government is committed to informed, effective, evidence based
policy along with a consultative approach to inform policy development”.’

1 Qld Pa'rliament Hansard, 22 Aug 2018, p.1962
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We commend the Queensland Government for introducing law reforms targeted to ensuring
women can access health care and termination services safely. We are grateful for the
opportunity to participate in the consultative process.

To this end, we restrict our comments to the section of the proposed legislation that we
believe we can contribute most to the Committee’s deliberations, being Part 4 of the Bili
concerning safe access zones.

Our key recommendation, discussed below, is that the Bill be amended to prohibit certain
conduct without the additional need to establish the impact of that condugct on thie victim, in
line with other safe access zone legislation across Australia, such as Victoria.

In the following paragraphs, we outline the information which we hope will be instructive for
the Committee, in the following format:

i. The importance of safe access zones;

ii. Learnings from our experience in arguing for safe access zones in other
jurisdictions, in particular Victoria;

iii. Victorian case study — how the introduction of safe access zone legislation
made a critical difference to the lives of patients and staff members of
Melbourne’s Fertility Control Clinic;

iv. Safe access zones as essential toensuring workplace safety;

V. Concern regarding Part 4’s requireinent that prohibited conduct be
‘reasonably likely to deter’;

vi. Reflections on Part 4 cf the draft legislation and recommended amendments;

vii. The importance of adopting gender neutral language.

We offer 10 recommendations for aimiendments to the Bill for consideration by the
Committee.

We are keen to offer ourexberience and expertise as legal professionals to the Committee.
We would welcome the-opportunity to meet with the Committee and elaborate on our
insights, and those ¢f cur former client, Dr Susie Allanson.

i. The'importance of safe access zones

The Queensiand Lsw Reform Commission’s (QLRC) review of termination of pregnancy
laws? found that:

“There is evidence that people who oppose termination of pregnancy sometimes
engage in activities including protesting, holding prayer vigils, or providing ‘footpath
counselling’ at or near premises at which a service of performing terminations on
women is provided, and that such behaviour may impact on the safety, privacy and
well-being of women who are accessing those premises and of service providers”.
(para 5.1)

2 https:/imwww.glrc.qld.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0004/576166/qlrc-report-76-2018-final.pdf p.155
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The QLRC report goes on to fund that:

“.....the purpose of safe access zone provisions is to protect the safety and
wellbeing and respect the privacy and dignity of persons accessing services
provided at termination services premises and employees and others who need fo
access those premises in the course of their duties and responsibilities’| (para
5.128)3

The report, in para. 5.122 concludes that “(the draft legislation should inclucie safe access
zone provisions”.

Similar conclusions have been drawn when like legislation has been intraduced in other
jurisdictions. With various wordings, the legislation in the Northern Territory, New South
Wales, Tasmania and Victoria all contain similar provisions.

In NSW, the process for embedding safe access zones in the legislation was politically
characterised by bi-partisanship. The Bill was co-sponsored. oy the Australian Labor Party
and The Nationals, with the Liberal Premier allowing a conscience vote amongst her party
members.*

In Victoria, Premier Daniel Andrews’ media release highiighted the importance of
establishing safe access zones for the benefit of the staff of the facility, saying:

“Staff who work at places where aborticns are performed also have the right fo enter
and leave their workplace safely, without being obstructed, interfered with, hindered
or harassed’.®

Maurice Blackburn has long recognised the importance of safe access zones — not just for
those accessing services, but as a workplace safety issue.®

ii. Learnings from our experience in arguing for safe access zones in
other jurisdictions, in carticular Victoria

Maurice Blackburn was instruimeniatl.in advocating for the establishment of safe access
zones around termination services in Victoria and has witnessed the significant and positive
difference this has made for patients and healthcare providers.

In 2015 Maurice Blackburp, together with the Human Rights Law Centre (HRLC)
commenced legal proceedings in the Supreme Court of Victoria on behalf of the FCC against
the Melbourne City Council (MCC), seeking orders compelling the MCC to stop the ongoing
harassment and intimidation of staff and patients entering the Clinic.

Based in East Melbourne, the FCC is Australia’s first private clinic established to provide
women withaccess to high quality and safe termination of pregnancy, contraception, family
planning arid reproductive healthcare. For more than 20 years anti-abortion protestors stood
outside the entrance to the Clinic, verbally and physically intimidating patients and staff
mernibers on-a daily basis. '

3 This is restated in the Explanatory Memorandum to the Bill, p.11

4 https:/iwww.smh.com.au/politics/nsw/abortion-clinic-safe-access-zones-become-law-in-nsw-20180607-
pdzk18.html

5 https://www.premier.vic.gov.au/safe-access-zones-to-protect-womens-right-to-medical-privacy-and-dignity/

8 See for example https://www.mauriceblackburn.com.au/about/media-centre/media-statements/2015/judgment-
in-melbourne-fertility-control-clinic-case-highlights-need-for-safe-access-zones/
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In the course of conducting this case, Maurice Blackburn was contacted by dozens of women
from diverse backgrounds, keen to share their experience of feeling threatened, followed and
intimidated by protestors outside the Clinic.

In conjunction with commencing these legal proceedings, Maurice Blackburn worked closely
with the HRLC, community members, staff from the FCC, women'’s rights organisaitions and
Victorian politicians to highlight the need for safe access laws across the state.

Although the case itself was not successful, we were able to help garner crugial momentum
for legislative change in Victoria.

Since coming into operation in May 2016, Victorian safe access zone legislation has had a
significant and beneficial impact for both patients and staff members of termination services.
For the first time in two decades, patients have been able to access the Clinic¢ free from
harassment, and staff members have been able to arrive at work withotit fear for their safety.

Despite the success of these laws in preventing the harassment and intimidation of patients
and staff members of termination services, one anti-abortion protestor is seeking to
challenge the constitutional validity of the Victorian legislation. Maurice Blackburn is acting
for the FCC in proceedings currently before the High Couit of Australia, in which we argue
that laws to prevent such infringements of privacy, wellbeing-and dignity within safe access
zones constitute a legitimate restriction on freedom of expression. The FCC has been
granted leave to appear as amicus curiae.

iii. Victorian case study — how the introduction of safe access zone
legislation made a critical difference to the lives of patients and staff
members of Melbourne’s Feitility Control Clinic

Through representing the FCC in the abovementioned proceedings, Maurice Blackburn
witnessed first-hand the significant toll the behaviour of protestors had on staff members,
who had been repeatedly verbally abused, sialked and harassed.

Maurice Blackburn draws the Committe«’s attention to the experience of Dr Susie Allanson,
who worked at the FCC as a Clinical Psychologist for twenty-six years, before and after
Victoria implemented safe access zones:

Case Study

Dr Susie Allanson worked-at the FCC as a Clinical Psychologist for twenty six years, retiring
in June 2017.

Prior to the introduction of the safe access laws, she would arrive at work early in order to
avoid the group of anti-abortion protestors who would picket outside the clinic’'s front gate.
On occasion, she wauld drive home with the suspicion of being followed, and developed a
habit of drivirig past her own house as a precaution.

Regularly she would see women arriving at the clinic visibly distressed by their contact with
protestors.in her words:

‘Patients would put off coming in to see us because they saw the protestors out the front.
Other patients would avoid attending appointments all together because they felt too scared.
In other cases, women felt so intimidated and harassed by the behaviour they experienced at
their initial consultation that they would avoid coming back for their follow-up appointments.
This would have a detrimental impact on their healthcare.
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The daily presence of the protestors had a huge impact on staff. Often we would arrive early
and avoid leaving the Clinic when we knew they were outside. Our focus was always on
patient care. In addition to counselling women who were already dealing with a highly
stressful situation, the behaviour of the protestors left them noticeably shaken. We’d have to
spend a lot of extra time reassuring them, making sure they felt safe and calming them down
before we were able to begin providing them with the medical care they were actuzily there
fo receive.

When the behaviour was particularly intrusive and patients were arriving for their
appointments scared and crying we would call the police. Over the years, the police secured
convictions against the protestors for assault, obscenity, threat to kill and even-murder but
this made no difference.

After my colleague Steve Rogers was killed at the Clinic by an anti-abortion protestor in 2001
it became particularly stressful arrive at work each morning and see them standing at the
entrance, their presence felt like a trigger reminding me of what had happened that day.

When the safe access zone legislation came in we didn’t nged to cail the police anymore; the
behaviour stopped. This was so freeing for staff and patierits — it imeant we could focus on
our job and the women accessing our setvices could arrive without fear of harassment.

Safe access zones work where other legal protections fail.

The introduction of safe access zones in Victoria has meant women and staff no longer have
a target on their back entering the Clinic, and warien no longer carry the heavy burden of
being publicly shamed for seeking medical assisiancs.

Securing safe access zones is about more than jiist protecting the safety, dignity and privacy
of women accessing health care facilities and (e ability for staff members to arrive at work
each day without feeling afraid, it speaks volumes to our capacity as a society to genuinely
address inequalities for women.’

iv. Safe access zohes as essential to ensuring workplace safety

The right to a safe workplace is fundamental to the Australian industrial relations system, and
our way of life.

For a considerable timg,-employers have borne a responsibility to provide a safe working
environment. However, as detailed in the case study above, premises offering termination
services often strugglé to protect staff from the actions of protesters, which at the very least,
regularly cause stafi to-experience feelings of fear, intimidation, anxiety and anger.

Anti-abortion protesters engage in obstructive and abusive behaviour that at times amounts
to assault. iiest significantly, on 16 July 2001, Steven Rogers, a security guard at the FCC,
was shot anid killed by anti-abortion activist Peter James Knight, in full view of staff and
patients. Armed with a gun, ammunition and kerosene, Peter Knight later spoke of his
intentiari‘to massacre the 15 staff and 26 patients who were present at the Clinic.

Anti-abortion protesters were outside the FCC the very next day, furthering the trauma of
staff.

Maurice Blackburn has long been an advocate and champion of worker safety. As detailed
by Dr Susie Allanson who had direct experience working at the FCC before and after the
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introduction of Victoria’s safe access zone legislation, safe access zones have the potential
to significantly improve the safety, wellbeing and freedom of movement of staff.

Maurice Blackburn is proud to add its voice to the many individuals, agencies and
organisations calling for change on behalf of patients of termination services. However, we
remind the Committee that the introduction of safe access zones is equally about ensuring
workplace safety.

V. Concern regarding Part 4’s requirement that prohibited conduct be
‘reasonably likely to deter’

We commend the Queensland Government for introducing law reformstargeted to ensuring
patients can access health care and termination services safely. Maurice Blackburn notes
that Part 4 of the Bill essentially reflects the recommendations of the Queensiand Law
Reform Commission (QLRC).”

However we are seriously concerned that the Bill as currently <rafted will not adequately
prevent conduct likely to cause harm. As currently drafted, behaviourthat may not be
‘reasonably likely to deter’ a patient from accessing termination services but is nevertheless
distressing, or breaches their right to privacy and dignity triay be permitted. This outcome is
clearly incompatible with the purported purpose of the safe access zones as set out in Part 4
of the Bill.8

Maurice Blackburn is also concerned that establishing whether or not a person has engaged
in ‘prohibited conduct’ will be very difficult as it varies depending on the particular experience
of each patient. This is likely to make the laws probiematic to enforce.

Furthermore, it will be difficult for a patient to'adegizately prove whether certain intimidating
behaviour is likely to deter them from accessing a’service, and the process of having to do so
is likely to be detrimental to their well-beiiig.

The imposition of this high bar is alsc likely fo result in reluctance by police to prosecute
persons who engage in intimidating behaviour within safe access zones.

Recommendation 1: The Bill stiould-be amended to prohibit certain conduct without the
additional need to establish the imipact on the victim, in line with other safe access zone
legislation in Australia, such as Victoria.

A more detailed analysis/of Part 4 of the Bill's provisions and suggested amendments are
provided below.

Vi, Retiactions on Part 4 of the draft legislation and suggested
amendments

Maurice Blackiburn has conducted a comparison of the Bill's safe access zone provisions and
equivalent legislation in New South Wales, Victoria, Tasmania, the Australian Capital
Territory and the Northern Territory.

We offer the following observations:

7 https:/iwww.glrc.qld.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0004/576166/qlrc-report-76-2018-final.pdf p.187 - 188

8 Section 11 of the Bill states that the purpose of the safe access zone laws is to protect the safety and well-being,
and respect the privacy and dignity of persons accessing services provided at termination service premises and
persons employed at these services.
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Section 13 - Meaning of termination services premises

We are concerned that the proposed definition of “termination services premises” is too
narrow in scope and may exclude facilities that only occasionally provide terminations. For
example, this definition may exclude the practices of General Practitioners who are
authorised to provide prescriptions for medications which induce terminations.

We recommend the following amendments to section 13;
Recommendation 2:

That the definition of “termination services premises” as provided foi/in sectjon 13 of the
Bill be amended by:

i removing “ordinarily” from the definition; or,

ii. replacing it with the definition contained in the equivaient NSW legislation to
include “any premises at which medical services relating to aspects of
human reproduction or maternal health, inciuding termination, are provided,
but does not include a pharmacy”®.

Section 14 - Meaning of safe access zone

We are concerned that allowing the safe access zone radius to be set by regulations makes
it vulnerable to reduction by future governments to‘an extent that it is rendered ineffectual.

The safe access zone radius should also factor iivpoiential attempts by anti-abortion
protestors to stop patients entering clinics bv accosting them at pedestrian access points.

We suggest the following adjustments:
Recommendation 3:
Sections 14 (1)(b) to (4) be retrioved, and replaced with:

“(b) within no(less than 150m of:
(iy-any part of the premises; or
(i) & pedestrian access point to a building that houses the
praiiises.

(2) A regulation may prescribe a distance greater than 150m for stated termination
services premises.

(3) The Minister may recommend to the Governor in Council the making of a
regulation under subsection (2) if satisfied that, having regard to the location of the
premises; a prescribed distance of 150m is insufficient to achieve the purpose of this
partin relation to the premises.” '

Section 15 - Prohibited conduct in safe access zones
As discussed at Section iii of this submission above, we are concerned that the requirement

imposed by section 15 (1) (c) that a person’s conduct be “reasonably likely to deter a person
from:

95 98A Public Health Act 2010 (NSW)
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e entering or leaving a termination services premises;
o requesting or undergoing a termination; or
» performing or assisting in the performance of, a termination”

will significantly limit the type of harmful conduct that may be successfully prosecuted under
this law.

The goal of the proposed section is to ensure patients can access health care facilities
unhindered by anti-choice protestors, whose tactics range from aggressive abuse to the
offering of prayer and display of photos of late term foetuses.°

Maurice Blackburn is concerned that such behaviour may not be considered “reasonably
likely to deter a patient from entering or leaving the premises, or requesting 0! undergoing an
abortion, or to deter a medical provider from performing or assisting in a termination”; but it
still may be highly distressing to the recipient.

We are concerned that the inclusion of this high bar may have the Linintended consequence
of allowing certain behaviours intended to be captured by section 15 to lawfully occur.

We offer the following suggestion:
Recommendation 4:
That section 15 (1) be replaced with:

15 Prohibited conduct in safe access z¢nes
(1) A person’s conduct in the safe access zone for termination services premises
is prohibited conduct if the condquct--=

(a) in relation to a person accessing, attempting to access, or leaving
termination services preises, besetting, harassing, intimidating,
interfering with, thireatening, hindering, obstructing or impeding that
person by any means; or

(b) subject to subsection (4), communicating by any means in relation to
abortions ir ‘@ manner that is able to be seen or heard by a person
accessing, atteinpting to access, or leaving premises at which abortions
are provided and is reasonably likely to cause distress or anxiety; or

(c) interfering with or impeding a footpath, road or vehicle, without
reasonanle excuse, in relation to premises at which abortions are
provided; or

(d) is a/pretest in relation to terminations that is able fo be seen or heard by
a person accessing, or attempting to access, termination services
premises”!

10 See forexampie: hitps:/iwww.news.com.aullifestyle/real-life/news-life/woman-begs-christian-protester-to-leave-
her-alone-outside-queensland-abortion-clinic/news-story/d209c09¢1 1a5d8df9a66db6e44096167,
https://www.couriermail.com.au/guestnews/city/anti-abortionists-stand-their-ground-over-contronting-image-on-
sign/news-sitary/042eecdfd262345938883ebe15467b71, https://www.watoday.com.au/national/western-
australia/push-for-safe-zones-around-abortion-clinics-after-employees-called-murderers-20180223-hOwkms. html
™ This suggestion comes from the Tasmanian legislation, and recognises that protestors outside the safe access
zone may use loud messages to circumvent the restrictions. As an alternative for the Committee to consider, (d)
could be replaced with a new (2) which could be worded along the lines of “a person’s conduct will be deemed to
have taken place in the safe access zone if it is able to be seen or heard by a person within the safe access
zone".
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The above proposed text is modelled on the equivalent provision in the Victorian and
Tasmanian safe access zone legislation. 12

As stated at section iv of this submission above, section 15 of the Bill should be amended to
prohibit certain conduct without the additional need to establish the impact on the victim. This
will promote consistency in safe access zone legislation across Australia.

In our experience, and as documented in the case study of Dr Susie Allanson above, trose
who protest at termination services premises often do so repeatedly, despite police cautions
and previous charges. As such, we recommend the following:

Recommendation 5:

That an additional provision be inserted into section 15 of the Bill providing for a higher
penalty for serial offenders via the insertion of a new section 15 (3):

“for a second or subsequent offence—200 penaity units or imprisonment for
18 months, or both."3

Section 16 - Recording persons in or near terminaticir services premises

For clarity, and to ensure the privacy of persons who are patients or employees/contractors
of a termination services premises, we recommend:;

Recommendation 6:
That section 16 (1) (a) be amended fo read:
“is an audio or visual recording of a person within a safe access zone;”

For the same reasons provided in suppori-of Recommendation 5, above, in relation to
penalties regarding audio and visua! recardings, we recommend:

Recommendation 7:

That the Committee consider a higher penalty for repeat offenders for the offences created
by sections 16 (2) and (3), via the insertion of a new s16 (4) which reads:

“for 2 secand or subsequent offence—200 penalty units or imprisonment for
18 months, or both.""*

To provide staff with certainty that visual or audio recording of persons engaging in prohibited
conduct within safe’ sccess zones is lawful, we recommend the insertion of an example after
section 16 (3) {c), sirilar to the example provided under section 16 (3) (b) of the Bill.

Recommendation 8:

That‘anexample be provided in section 16 (3) (c) be inserted, with words to the effect of:

12 5185B of the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 (Vic) and s 9 of the Reproductive Health (Access to
Terminations) Act 2013 (Tas).

13 This proposed clause is drawn from ss 98C(b), 98D(b) and 98E(b)

4 This proposed clause is drawn from ss 98C(b), 98D(b) and 98E(b)
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“it may be reasonable excuse for the occupier of the premises to distribute a
restricted recording of another person without the other person’s consent to staff
and contractors of the premises, or to police, for security purposes”.

To provide staff and operators of termination services with certainty regarding steps they can
take to secure the premises, we recommend the insertion of a new clause in section16
which explicitly permits the operation of security cameras.
Recommendation 9:
That a new clause be inserted below section 16 (4) which reads:
*Subsections (2) and (3) do not apply to the operation of a securily carmera, for
security reasons only, by or on behalf of a person a person operating a termination
services premises, or premises adjust to or near such a premisas”'®
vii. The importance of adopting gender neutraj language:
Maurice Blackburn commends the Queensiand Governmerit for its. commitment to LGBTI
equality. Maurice Blackburn believes it is important that the proposed legislation protects all
people who may become pregnant. We therefore recorameindthat references to ‘women’ in
the Bill be replaced with ‘patient’ or ‘pregnant person.’
Recommendation 10:
References in the Bill to ‘women’ be replaced by ‘patient’ or ‘pregnant person.’
Once again, we congratulate the Committee on-its important work. We would welcome the
opportunity to meet with the Committee alongside representatives of the FCC and Dr Susie

Allanson to answer questions and elabcrate en our insights.

Yours faithfully,

. CTPI - Personal Information
CTPI - Personal Information

Sarah Atkinson Katie Robertson
Principal Senior Associate
Maurice Blackburn Maurice Blackburn

18 This proposed clause is drawn from s 98E(3)(a) of the Public Health Act 2010 (NSW).
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Megan Lederhose

TR

From: Evan Moorhead

Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 8:30 AM
To: Sharon Durham

Subject: FW: this morning

Evan Moorhead
Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MIP
Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade

CTPI - Personal

P 07 3719 7013 M nformation

P 1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
Government

CTPI - Personal Information

From: Rodney Hodgson
Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 8:29 AM

To: Evan Moorhead <Evan.Moorhead@ministerial.gld.gov.au>

Cc: Katelyn Dougherty <Katelyn.Dougherty@ministerial.qld.govau>; Jacqueline Mahon

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

SEELIEE

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international ISO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please!cansider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing oi"cupying of this-email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its inforination in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: htip:./iwww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
poticy.aspx

From: Rodney Hodizson

Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 8:00 AM

To: Janene Hillhouse (Janene.Hillhouse@oir.qld.gov.au) <Janene.Hillhouse @oir.gld.gov.au>
Cc: Paul Goldsbrough (Paul.Goldsbrough@oir.ald.gov.au) <Paul.Goldsbrough@oir.gld.gov.au>;
CTPI - Personal @morav.com.au; Jacque“ne MahonCTPl-Personal Information

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

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers ]
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brisbane QLD 4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

EERIEENIEE

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian faw firm certified to the international SO 9001:2008 quality standard.

We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this emait.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have recelved this email in erroi nlease notify iHe sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privasy policy, click here: hitp:/Avww.mauriceblackburn.com.aufprivacy-
policy.aspx
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Megan Lederhose

From: Evan Moorhead

Sent: Friday, 27 July 2018 5:59 PM

To: Chris Perkins; Sharon Durham; Katelyn Dougherty

Subject: Fwd: Wage theft sub

Attachments: 180723 MB Submission Qld Wage Theft 270718.docx; ATT00001.htm

Evan Moorhead

Begin forwarded message:

n CTPI - Personal Information

From: "Jade Thompson
To: "Evan Moorhead" <Evan.Moorhead@ministerial.ald.gov.au>
CC: "Ben Hubbard" CTPI - Personal Information

Subject: Wage theft sub

Evan,
Here's a copy of our wage theft sub for your information.
Cheers,

Jade.

Jade Thompson | National Media Manager

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brisbane QLL 4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

BERISEREE

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Austratian faw firm certified to the international 1ISO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neuiral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printirig or-copving of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this emait in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printe
copy and do not disclose or useits information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: http:/fwww. mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx
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Maurice Blackburn Pty Limited

30 July 2018 ABN 21 105 657 949

Level 21
380 _atrobe Street
Meibourne VIC 3000

Committee Secretary DX 466 Melbourne
Education, Employment and Small Business Committee T (03) 9605 2700
Parliament House F (03) 9258 9600
George Street

Brisbane Qld 4000

By email: eesbc@parliament.gld.gov.au

Dear sirfmadam,

We welcome the opportunity to provide feedback in'relation to the Education, Employment
and Small Business Committee Inquiry into wage theft in Queensland.

This submission is made on behalf of Maurice Blackburn, the Australian Manufacturing
Workers Union Queensland, the Australian Meat industry Employees Union Queensland, the
Together Union Queensland, the Transport Warkers Union Queensland, United Voice
Queensland and the Communications, Electrical, Electronic, Energy, Information, Postal,
Plumbing and Allied Services Union of Australia — Plumbing Division Queensland.

Please do not hesitate to contact me and my colleagues on 07 3016 0300 if we can further
assist with the Working Group’s important work.

Yours faithfully,

Giri Sivaraman
MAURICE BLACKBURN

www.mauriceblackburn.com.au RTI Document No. 219 Of 322
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Maurice Blackburn Lawyers submission to the Inquiry into Wage Theft in Queensland
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Maurice Blackburn Lawyers submission to the Inquiry into Wage Theft in Queensland

Introduction

Maurice Blackburn Pty Ltd is a plaintiff law firm with 31 permanent offices and 29 visiting
offices throughout all mainland States and Territories. The firm specialises in personal
injuries, medical negligence, employment and industrial law, dust diseases, superannuation
(particularly total and permanent disability claims), negligent financial and other advice, and
consumer and commercial class actions.

Maurice Blackburn employs over 1000 staff, including approximately 330 lawyers who
provide advice and assistance to thousands of clients each year. The advice services are
often provided free of charge as it is firm policy in many areas to give the first consultation for
free. The firm also has a substantial social justice practice.

Our Queensland practice has 13 offices spread across both regional and metropolitan parts
of the State, with these offices similarly offering legal services across the firm’s primary
practice areas of personal injuries, medical negligence, employment and industrial law, dust
diseases, superannuation, negligent financial and other advice; and consumer and
commercial class actions. The Queensland arm of Maurice Blackbuin has also contributed to
recent parliamentary inquiries into labour hire, and has appeared at numerous parliamentary
hearings to advocate for vulnerable workers on a range of issues including wage theft and
conditions.

The Australian Manufacturing Workers Union Queensland, the Australian Meat Industry
Employees Union Queensland, the Together UnionQueensland, the Transport Workers
Union Queensland, United Voice Queensland, and the Communications, Electrical,
Electronic, Energy, Information, Postal, Plumhing and Allied Services Union of Australia —
Plumbing Division Queensland (“the Unions”}; are aii unions that cover workers in
Queensland. Between them they cover workers inyrnost areas in Queensland.

Our Submission
Maurice Blackburn and the Unions helieve that wage theft should be criminalised.

We see this inquiry as an important part of a wider current focus on exploitative employer
practices and misconduct, of the undermining of employment practices through labour hire
arrangements and shame contracting, the loss of life in workplace accidents, the rampant
exploitation of cohorts of vitinerable workers — such as cleaners — and the emergence of an
almost dystopian sector of the economy.

Encouragingly however, the Queensland Government and other legislators have been
providing policy leadersnip in recent times. We applaud their actions in moving to licence
labour hire, legisiaie industrial manslaughter and to encourage a discussion on the the future
of work — as weil’ as wholesale state-based reviews of workplace health and safety.

Maurice Blackiurn believes that in exploring how best to criminalise wage theft, instead of
adjusting the existing provisions of the criminal code, a separate legislative scheme should
be implemenited to criminalise wage theft, balancing the needs of business and the rights of
workers — a Wage Theft Act.

The potential provisions of a Wage Theft Act include:
s  Strict liability offences;
¢ Tiered levels of conducted amounting to wage theft; and
o Tiered levels of penalty.
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Further, Maurice Blackburn believes that existing regulatory instruments can be adjusted to
work towards the abolition of wage theft in particular industrial relationships, such as
franchise, ride share and gig economy arrangements.

Maurice Blackburn congratulates the Queensland Government on its ongoing quest to
ensure that workers are treated fairly, and that employers accept responsibility forensuring
their safety and wellbeing.

Responses to the Terms of Reference

ToR (a) the incidence of wage theft in Queensland, with reference als¢ o -evidence of wage
theft from other parts of Australia;

Maurice Blackburn is confident that the inquiry will receive many well researched
submissions which will contain specific statistics relating to the scale and extent of wage theft
on Queensland.

In this submission, we will outline the types and extent of wage theft that we and our union
colleagues come across on a daily basis.

Wage theft is broad in nature, crossing many industries and employment types. It is not
restricted to those that we hear most about in the media. But there is significant similarity in
the circumstances through which wage theft is able io occur. We mainly see wage theft in
circumstances where:

e There is a pronounced power or status diffarence between the worker and the
employer;

e The company operates within a highly competitive industry, where the employer feels
that the only option to save costs is through cutting corners on staff wages and
benefits;

e The workers feel poweriess to do anything about it, through fear of losing their jobs or
residential status; and

e There is competition forihe jobs on offer.

As a national law firm, we are ceitainly aware that wage theft is not restricted to Queensland.
We acknowledge that othei jurisdictions are exploring ways through which the likelihood and
incidence of wage theft can e reduced, or nullified.’

ToR (b) the impagiof wage theft on workers, families, law-abiding businesses, the economy
and community '

Our experierice wiin clients tells us that the impacts of wage theft extend much deeper than
merely loss of income — although that in itself is a major concern for families struggling with
the day to day cost of living.

Wage theft'impacts on the very core of a worker’s sense of self.

Many of our clients report the following feelings associated with, or generated through, their
experience of wage theft:

1 hitp:/iwww.abc.net.au/news/2018-05-26/victorian-government-vows-to-crack-down-on-wage-theft/9802072

Page 3

RTI Document No. 223 of 322



Maurice Blackburn Lawyers submission to the Inquiry into Wage Theft in Queensland

i. Fear.
As we will demonstrate throughout this submission, many victims of wage theft
are from the most vulnerable of Australian cohorts. They include immigrant
communities and particularly those without residency or work rights, young
people, students, women, those with disabilities, older workers, Indigenous
Australians, early school leavers and those returning to the workforce. Inevitably,
these people fear that speaking out against wage theft will hamper their canacity
to retain work, or find anything better. Migrant workers are often told that they are
not receiving their full wage because that would put their citizenship status in
jeopardy. There is a feeling of being stuck — unable to see a way forward to a
better future. The fear is a natural extension of the power imbaiance that exists
between unscrupulous employers and vulnerable employees.

ii. Shame or embarrassment.
Victims of wage theft often report feeling that they have done something wrong —
that they have somehow put themselves and their families’in this situation.

iii. Isolation.
Many victims of wage theft feel like they are alone. Many don’t know of the
supports that are available to them, through unions, consumer advocates or the
various information and complaints authorities.

iv. Anger and frustration.
Negative feelings generated in the workplace are often ventilated in inappropriate
ways, having dreadful consequences on families, peer groups and communities.

v. Desperation.
Feelings of inadequacy can sometimes lead to tragic consequences.

Maurice Blackburn is also concerned that businesses which engage workers but abrogate
their legal responsibilities for proper pay and conditions are being given an unfair
commercial advantage over businesseswhich play by the rules. We recommend that the
Committee give consideration to how ‘the ievel playing field’ should be retained.

At the end of this document are a number of case studies compiled by Maurice Blackburn
and our union colleagues. Each speaks to the impacts of wage theft, way beyond the
stresses associated with being in.a poorly paying occupation.

ToR (c) the various forms that wage theft can take, including through unpaid super, the
misuse of ABNs and shari coniracting arrangements

In this submission, Maurice Blackburn details the following forms of wage theft:
e PPaying undei-award wage rates;
¢ Failing to pay superannuation;
¢ Failing to-pay for breaks;
e Failing to' pay overtime;
e The compulsory use of employer-provided staff accommodation to claw back wages;
o “Withinoiding of wages on the basis that it will put visa status at risk;
¢ Noti paying for trial or training periods;
o Classifying workers as independent contractors;
e Deliberate employee misclassification;
e Sham contracting arrangements;
¢ Not paying personal, annual or paid leave;
¢ Not paying appropriately for higher duties;
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e Failing to meet basic worker entitlements in family run businesses;

e Phoenixing-type activity, where a firm goes into administration to avoid having to pay
employee entitlements, then re-emerging under a different legal structure but with the
same individuals in control;

e Inappropriate deductions from workers’ wages such as inflated rent and transport
costs;

e Charging employees for PPE;

e Paying flat rates of pay, regardless of the shift type;

e Failing to deduct taxation amounts;

e Requiring the employee to pay an ‘employment bond’;

e Compulsory medicals and drug testing at nominated medical centres with inflated
medical fees; and

e Failing to pay for ‘on call’ periods.

This list indicates the scale and extent of wage theft in Queerisiand.

ToR (d) the reasons why wage theft is occurring, including whether it has become part of the
business model for some organisations

As mentioned, we mainly see wage theft occurring in industries and entities where:

e There is a pronounced power or status difference between the worker and the
employer;

e There is a general custom or industry practice to utilise insecure forms of work;

e The company operates within a highly comipetitive industry, where the employer feels
that the only option to save costs is through cutting corners on staff wages and

benefits;
o The workers feel powerless to de arniything about it, through fear of losing their jobs or

residential status; and
e There is competition for the jobs on offer.

Industries through which services are procured are, by nature, prone to exploiting workers.

Large retailers, producers, manufacturers and even ASX200 corporations are able to
outsource their manual lakour requirements through competitive tender processes. Through
this, they are able to dictate pay rates — by selecting the successful tenderer on the basis of
cost — without having the direct responsibility to the workers for their employment terms and
conditions.

The emergence of this middle party — the employer of the workers — has led to a disconnect
between the development of purchasing policies by retailers/corporations and the impacts
those policies have on those actually providing services.

These middle parties — the business operators who win the tender to provide services - must
figure out how to provide the services and derive their own profit in a highly competitive
marketplace where the success of the tender is determined primarily by the lowest bid. One
obvious way we have seen is to cut costs in employees’ pay rates.
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For example, a 2016 audit by the Fair Work Ombudsman (FWO) found that 33% of cleaning
businesses were paying their staff incorrectly.? United Voice has found that the likelihood of
breaches of the Award increases exponentially once a second tier or more of sub-
contracting is introduced.

From the employees’ perspective, it's a race to the bottom.

Over the past two decades, many business operators have found legal ways to avoid their
responsibilities under Fair Work legislation and other legal and regulatory structures:.

One approach is that people who work for them become self-employed or indensndent
contractors, and as such avoid having to take responsibility for the provision of safety nets
that Australians have come to expect: awards-based wages, superannuation and workers’
compensation.

These business operators have managed to move the public discourse away from their
responsibility for providing adequate employee entitiements to a focus on ‘who employs
whom’.

Many business operators adopt ‘sham contracting’ arrangeimerits between themselves and
their contracted staff. This is especially prevalent in low-paid sectors where those doing the
work have little market power such as cleaners, construction workers, beauticians, call
centre workers, disability workers and drivers.

In its report on its inquiry into Corporate Avoidance of the Fair Work Act, the Senate
Education and Employment References Conimittee noted that for many workers engaged in
such arrangements: “There is also no sectirity of income, no insurance for the worker in case
of accident, no superannuation, no personal, annual or paid leave of any description.”

These new work arrangements are sometimes positioned in the context of entrepreneurship,
self-determination and workplace flexibiiity, but Maurice Blackburn believes that they are
merely another way in which employers are abrogating their responsibilities to their workers.

Many labour hire operators aperate outside employment frameworks and routinely exploit
workers. They are effectively invisible to legal and regulatory regimes. While a number of
states are now implemeniting {abour hire licensing schemes*, there is still the outstanding
issue of how federal laws inteisect with these schemes, while other states continue to be

without a framework at all.

Precarious work and particularly the prevalence of sham contracting, the abuse of labour
hire arrangements, freelance/contingency work and gig economy work outside of regulatory
frameworks are increasing year by year.

It is important that industry regulators are appropriately resourced to proactively and
reactively respond to issues arising from these multi-level employment arrangements. This

2 https:/iwww.fairwork.gov.au/about-us/news-and-media-releases/2016-media-releases/may-2016/20160513-
cleaning-compliance-campaign-presser
Swww.aph.gov.au/Parliamentary_Business/Committees/Senate/Education_and_Employment/AvoidanceofFairWor
k/Report/c08, section 8.2.

4 See, for example, https://www.worksafe.qld.gov.au/news/2018/regulation-of-the-labour-hire-industry-in-
queensland; https://feconomicdevelopment.vic.gov.au/inquiry-into-the-labour-hire-industry;
https:/lwww.sa.gov.au/topics/business-and-trade/licensing/labour-hire/labour-hire-licence
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involves ensuring that a regime of regular audits of employers sits alongside a capacity to
investigate complaints efficiently and in a timely manner.

ToR (e) whether wage theft is more likely to occur in particular industries, occupations or
parts of the state or among particular cohorts of workers

As mentioned, those who fall victim to wage theft most often work for businesses which
attract and employ the most vulnerable workers. These may include workers from culturally
and linguistically diverse backgrounds, those returning to the workforce following family
responsibilities, early school leavers and students.

This vulnerability often places them at a distinct status disadvantage in negctiating
appropriate employment conditions. This is typified by:

¢ Employee non-engagement with unions or forms of workforce organisation;

e Employees not questioning inappropriate behaviours of employers through fear of
retribution, or not being able to find alternative work; and

¢ Employees not seeking external information on gntitlements.

In our experience, migrant populations are often the victims of sham contracting
arrangements. There are approximately 650,000 temporary migrants in Australia, a large
majority of whom are working.

Business operators claim that contracted empicyment arrangements offer young migrants an
opportunity to join the workforce in a flexible and gntrepreneurial way.

[n our experience, the conditions of their visas are often used against them to claw back
salaries or underpay them. They are led to believe that if they complain about working
arrangements, or if they are paid too much, they will be deported.

In its well-researched submissicn to a recent Senate inquiry into the future of work,® the
Centre for Multicultural Youth says, in relation to young immigrants:

‘In the future, yourg people are likely to be navigating a much more flexible and
variable workplacs, with less support and where there may be increased risks of
exploitation.’ As such, young people will also need to be equipped with knowledge
about theirrights and responsibilities in the workplace, as well as with supports to
exercise these rights.’

In short, the most marginalised workers are over-represented in poor working arrangements
that leave them vulnerable to wage theft.

Worker expioitatibn and wage theft is always lowest in workplaces with the highest union
membership. The reasons for this are self-evident:

5 https:/iwww.aph.gov.au/DocumentStore.ashx?id=3cd33a44-816c-46dc-87ae-5d4709¢cb98bb&subld=563289.
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e The union is a source of information for workers on their rights, conditions and
entitlements;

e The union will involve workers in bargaining processes with the employer; and

e The union will take action if it finds that workers are being exploited and hold the
employer accountable.

There are, however, several issues associated with industries prone to wage theft which
make connections with unions difficult. These include:

e A high turnover or availability of staff;

¢ A highly casualised workforce;

* Antipathy or aggression from some employers about the role of unioits; and

¢ Fear amongst some cultural and minority groups of potential negative consequences
of joining a union in the eyes of the employer.

Research has indicated that nearly all international students in Australia are paid less than
the minimum award rate and some are paid below the minimum wage.

Maurice Blackburn and the Unions encourage the Commiittee to recommend that the
Queensland Government work with and through unicns as a primary means of information
distribution to the workforce, for information pertaining to minimum employee entitlements
and recourse available in the event of employer misccnduct.

Throughout this submission, we will focus on'four ¢ohorts of workers that are vulnerable to
wage theft. They are:
i.  The gig economy;
i.  Transport;
iii.  Franchising arrangements; and
iv.  The public service.

i. The gig economy

The advent of the ‘gig-economy” and resulting irregular and insecure employment has
drastically changed Queensland and Australia’s industrial relations landscape. Gig-economy
entities have leveraged riew technology and exploited out-of-date legislative frameworks to
circumvent industrial-iaws and have sought to engage workers as independent contractors in
the delivery of servicas previously performed by employees.

The most prominent and obvious example of gig-economy work that has sought to evade
conventiona! employment arrangements and which has thereby derived an unfair advantage
are the food aelivery services such as UberEats, Foodora and Deliveroo.

Maurice Blackburn submits that workers performing work for gig-economy food delivery
services should properly be considered employees.
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This position is supported by the Fair Work Ombudsman’s recent decision to commence
proceedings in the Federal Court of Australia alleging contraventions of sham contracting
and minimum payment provisions by Foodora, in an important test case.®

ii. Transport:

Despite the fact that Uber has complete control over the rates of pay drivers receive for their
services and jobs they perform, Uber denies its drivers are employees, instead referring to
them as “driver partners”.

Uber also denies playing a significant role in the service it provides, describing its role as
merely providing a digital platform through which drivers and customers can enter into
contractual arrangements.’

Uber's “arm’s length” position is hard to reconcile with the fact'that it allocates jobs to drivers,
sets the rates charged, dictates and imposes terms of service on beth drivers and
passengers and has the power to unilaterally terminate drivers” services.

Uber drivers are responsible for all petrol, insurance, operating and capital costs, as well as
net GST payments. They are responsible for their own income tax, and for their own
superannuation contributions. They are not paid for the time and expense of driving to their
fare, or for time spent waiting between fares.

A recent study® found that, after taking into account all costs, but before paying income tax
and superannuation contributions, the average Australian Uber driver is paid $14.62 an hour,
with many drivers receiving less.

This is over $4 an hour below Australia’s statutory minimum wage of $18.93 per hour. That’s
a loss of $163.78 a week for a driver werking 38 hours a week (it is clear that many Uber
drivers work well in excess of that figure to make ends meet).

It is also $6 an hour below ttie base rate payable to drivers under the Passenger Vehicle
Transportation Award 2010, and potentially equates to less than half the payments due to
drivers under that Award ohice casual loading and penalty rates are taken into account.
Uber points to their “surge ‘gricing” as a way that their “driver partners” can make a living
wage.

General Manager fer-Uber in Australia and New Zealand, David Rohrsheim, was recently
quoted as saying. in response to the above featured income findings, that:

"When surge pricing automatically kicks in ... the fare might be one-and-a-half, two
times the normal rates. Drivers know this and the smart ones log on at the right
times and the right areas and earn the big bucks."®

8 https://www.fairwork.gov.au/about-us/news-and-media-releases/2018-media-releases/june-2018/20180612-
foodora-litigation

7 See for example hitps://www.nytimes.com/2016/11/27technology/uber-europe-court-ecj.html

8 https:/iwww.futurework.org.aufinnovation_or_exploitation_simulating_net_hourly_incomes_of_uberx_drivers
9 http://www.abc.net.au/news/2018-03-06/uber-x-drivers-working-for-half-the-minimum-wage/9513250
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However, as Economist and Director of the Centre for Future Work Dr Jim Stanford points
out:

“This 'surge’ income cannot be relied on, since drivers have no control or knowledge
when (or even if) this system will be activated. Moreover, as Uber drivers
increasingly organise their work schedules around peak periods, and &s the general
population of drivers increases, then the likelihood that demand for drivers will
exceed supply (hence triggering surge pricing) is further reduced... supplemental
income from surge pricing is shrinking as a result of the growing supply of Uber
drivers — many of whom concentrate their working hours in peak periods in often-
unfulfilled hope of attracting surge price revenue.” °

Uber has also indicated that its goal is to limit instances of surge pricing - “For us, it's better
not to surge. If we don't surge, we can produce more rides.”"

If Uber were required to pay their “partner” drivers, it woula actuaily encourage healthy
competition in the market, in which traditional providers such as taxis will not be
disadvantaged by paying its drivers living wages.

Imposing minimum pay requirements on ride share companies is also likely to improve safety
of drivers, as it will reduce the need for drivers to work extended hours in order to make a
living wage.

iii. Franchising

One of the most common industries in which wage theft occurs in Australia is the franchising
industry. Confidence in franchises is 4t an 2il-time low, following repeated scandals of wage
theft and unsound business practices and relationships. Ongoing, public cases such as 7-
Eleven, Caltex, Domino’s and Retali Food Group show the need for reform in the sector, to
ensure that workers aren’t exploited aind compliant franchises can operate with integrity.

The franchise industry employs cver 775,000 people.'? The $180 billion sector is currently
the subject of a federal seniate inquiry and the focus of the Australian Competition and
Consumer Commissiori {*ACCC”), following 600 franchising related complaints made last

yeai.

The franchising model has been described as a ‘honey trap’, luring inexperienced
franchisees withy prospects of business success.'® When franchisees suffer as a result of
these relationsthirs, so do workers engaged by the franchisees. It is not uncommon for a
franchise relationship to be so restricted that the only way a franchisee can make a profit is
through the undercutting of their wages bill.

'® Subsidising Billionaires: Simulating the Net Incomes of UberX Drivers in Australia by Jim Stanford,
Ph.D. Centre for Future Work at the Australia Institute. March 2018

1 hitps:/www.nytimes.com/interactive/2017/04/02/technology/uber-drivers-psychological-tricks.htmi?_r=0

2 Jenny Buchan, Franchising: A Honey Pot In A Bear Trap, Adelaide Law Review (2014) 34.

'3 Jenny Buchan, Franchising: A Honey Pot In A Bear Trap, Adelaide Law Review (2014) 34.
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Professor Allan Fels, past chairman of the Australian Competition and Consumer
Commission is on record as saying: “My impression — my strong impression — is that the only
way a franchisee can make a go of it in most cases is by underpaying workers, by illegal
behaviour'**

This goes some way to explaining why the scandals are so wide spread, as it stems from the
deliberate business model of franchisors, which hang franchisees and workers out to dry.

iv. The Public Service:

In 2009, the Industrial Court of Queensland held that the then Public Service Act 1996 (Qld)
and the Industrial Relations Act 1999 (Qld) did not provide a means for public servants to
seek back-pay resulting from their position being under classified, or deveioping to
incorporate higher duties which attracted a higher classification, and therefore a higher rate
of pay.

The Industrial Court held that the QIRC did not have the power to order back-pay for any
period where a public servant was performing duties sufficient to attract a higher
classification level, until this was formally recognised as such by the Chief Executive
reclassifying their position:

“It is not the scheme of the Award to attaci a salary to a particular set of duties, nor
to attach a salary to a public service employees' principal function. It is not a grant of
authority to the Commission to retrospectively arbitrate a "fair" or "reasonable"” wage
for a particular public service employee in an action to recover outstanding
wages.”’®
While the decision was specific to the-wording contained in the relevant award, while the
Award changed the wording used from “office” to “role”, it is unclear whether the precedent of
the Langley matter would apply today. A‘iegislative amendment to ensure there is no
ambiguity is required, a possible-sclution is to examine the provisions of the Western
Australia public sector legislation which make appointment decisions in respect of
classification levels for the émployee subject to industrial awards.

The result is that Queens!and public servants may still be barred from making underpayment
claims, even where it has been recognised by their department’s Chief Executive that they
were performing duties attracting a higher rate of pay. This leaves public servants in a
demonstrably worse position that employees in the private sector, and needs to change.

ToR (f) tne effectiveness of the current requlatory framework at state and federal level in
dealing with wage theft and supporting affected workers

Refer to our response to ToR (g)

14 https://www.smh.com.aufinteractive/2015/7-eleven-revealed/
15 Minister for Industrial Relations AND Perry Keith Langley (C/2009/46)
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ToR (g) options for ensuring wage theft is eradicated, including consideration of requlatory
and other measures either implemented or proposed in other jurisdictions interstate,
nationally or internationaily and the role of industrial organisations, including unions and
employer registered bodies in addressing and preventing wage theft.

Maurice Blackburn is of the opinion that wage theft should be criminalised.

Theft by an employee is a separate offence in the Criminal Code Act 1899 (Qld) (“Criminal
Code") and garners a more serious penalty than stealing generally. However there is no
equivalent for theft by an employer. Theft by an employer, as described earlier, akes
advantage of the trust or vuinerability of an employee.

To this end, Maurice Blackburn submits that:

a) This inquiry should recommend that a comprehensive legislative scheme is
introduced to criminalise wage theft;

b) The legislative scheme should create strict liability offerices, with various penalties
dependent on the nature of the wage theft; and

¢) That industrial organisations be given standing to piosecute wage theft.

The Criminal Code

Maurice Blackburn submits that current provisions of the criminal code are not the most
appropriate vehicle to criminalise wage theft. Below‘we provide our view on why neither the
‘stealing’ nor ‘fraud’ provisions of the Queensland Criminal Code would be an appropriate
mechanism for criminalising wage theft.

i Stealing

The Criminal Code criminalises theft. Section 391 of the Criminal Code defines stealing.

Section 398 of the Criminal Code s&ts out the punishment for stealing, and, “special
circumstances” that are aggravated types of stealing. Section 398 subsection 6 sets out
the particular offence of stealing by clerks and servants:

If the offender is a clerk or servant, and the thing stolen is the property of the
offender’s employer, or came into the possession of the offender on account of the
offender’s emplayer, the offender is liable to imprisonment for 10 years.16

The Criminal Ccede defines a servant as follows:

“...any person employed for any purpose as or in the capacity of a clerk or
et/ A7
servant..:

As stated earlier, the stealing provisions of the Criminal Code anticipates and criminalises
theft by an employee, however, does not apply to an employer.

18 Criminal Code Act 1899 (Qld) s 6.
17 |bid, Part 1 Definitions.
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One reason why wage theft by an employer is not anticipated in the stealing provisions of
the Criminal Code is as to steal one must ‘take’ or ‘convert’ anything capable of being
stolen.”®

Stealing is not the appropriate provision to criminalise wage theft, as the stealing
provision in the Criminal Code is designed to criminalise the taking of a thing, not the
withholding of a thing, such as a failure to pay wages.

il Fraud

Within the Criminal Code, fraud may be a more appropriate mecharism to criminalise
wage theft. Section 408C of the Criminal Code sets out the following'®:

A person who dishonestly:

e Gains a benefit, pecuniary or otherwise, to any person;% or
e Causes a detriment, pecuniary or otherwise, to any person.?’

While the fraud provisions of the Criminal Code couid he amended to criminalise wage
theft, two issues exist:

e Proving intent to engage in wage theft, which would mean that employers who are
ignorant of their obligations and fail to pay could not be prosecuted successfully;

e The burden of proof, beyond reasonzble doubt, coupled with intent makes the bar
too high.

In light of the above, Maurice Blackburn and the lJnions believe that the current Criminal
Code is not the appropriate vehicle to criminalise wage theft.

Instead, Maurice Blackburn and the Unions submit that a separate legislative scheme is
required to criminalise wage theft, balancing the needs of business and the rights of workers.

To this end, Maurice Blackburn and the Unions recommend that the inquiry consider the
development of a Wage Theft Act. Qur summary of its potential provisions appears below:

A Wage Theft Act would sei cut'the following:

o Strict liability offences;
o Tiered levels of conducted amounting to wage theft;
e Tiered leveis of penalty.

A Wage Theft Act would have parallels with the Workplace Health and Safety Act (Qld) 2011
(“WHS Act”)in terms of offences and penalties. For example, categories could take a form as

follows:

8 Ibid s 391(1).
19 Similar to the Stealing provisions, fraud contemplates if the offender is an employee of another person. If the

victim is the employer, then the employee will be liable to 12 years imprisonment at 408C (1) (e)

20 Criminal Code Act 1899 (Qld) s 408C(1)(d).
21 |bid s 408C(1)(e).
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Category 1 — reckless or intentional conduct in relation to wages (highest
category)

The category one offence would criminalise reckless conduct by an employer or
engager, where either intentionally or recklessly, the employer or engager
engages or engaged in conduct that exposes an individual or group of workers to
the underpayment or non-payment of wages.

A pecuniary penalty of up to $1,000,000 and/or 10 years imprisoiiment would be
appropriate for this conduct contrary to this offence.

Category 2 — multiple failures to comply and make payment of wages
(medium category)

The category two offence would criminalise a failure by an employer or engager to
comply with relevant industrial instruments, supei@nnuation laws in a systemic
failure to pay wages.

An appropriate pecuniary penalty for this offence would be $300,000.
Category 3 — individual failure to comply and pay wages (lowest category)

The category three offence criminalises an employer or engager’s failure to pay
wages without a reasonable excuse. This simple offence is applicable to
employers and engagers who are unstire of their obligations and fail to pay wages
as a result of their ignorance.

An appropriate pecuniary penalty for this offence would be $100,000.

A reasonable excuse for-an employer or engager could be the lack of a dedicated
Human Resources team.

In the drafting of any legislative scheme, it is important that its application be broad so as to
encapsulate new and emerging methods of engagement, such as the gig economy.

lh 'I'Ar'mo n'F r\rnoanl ﬂ-lr\ A t\F r'F'annr\n tha AAafanan vinnlAd lhaav tha lardan AF nrAanf A nravia Hha
SniES, Wt GEienCe WCUIG Stal int SurGen Ci TSR yluvu Ui

conduct was engaged in with a reasonable excuse.

Industrial organisations already provide assistance to their members when it comes to
recovering wagas. Industrial organisations should be given standing to prosecute wage theft,
and to be abie to seek costs from an employer on a successful prosecution.

Prosecution via the creation of hew provisions within the criminal code is only one potential

method for prosecuting wage theft. Enhancing existing regulatory regimes may also be more
appropriate in some situations. Some examples are included below.
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Other Regulatory Regimes

In our response to ToR (e), we noted the prevalence of wage theft within different
employment relationships. Again, we here discuss prosecution in terms of:

i. Transport and the gig economy; and
ii. Franchise Arrangements.

i. Transport and the gig economy

The Fair Work Commission, in two decisions, has previously considered whether Uber
drivers who transport passengers are employees for the purposes of determining their
capacity to bring unfair dismissal applications pursuant to section 394 of the Fair Work Act
2009 (Cth) (FW Act)?2.

On these occasions, the Commission has concluded that the workers were not employees,
within the meaning of section 386(1)(a) of the FW Act. This conclusion has not been upheld
by any court and does not have the force of precedent. Maurice Blackburn and the Unions
believe that the conclusion of the Commission in respect of Uber drivers in these discreet
circumstances will not be determinative in respect of all workers performing work for ‘gig-
economy’ food delivery services.

There is the possibility that even if the Fair Yvork Ombudsman or any subsequent applicant

seeking to test the employment status of these workers in a court or an industrial tribunal is

successful that ‘gig-economy’ entities wili continue to seek to structure their operations, and
the basis on which they engage workers; to avoid attempts to characterise these workers as
employees.

The Federal Government has provided no indication that it intends to legislate minimum
conditions for ‘gig-economy’ workers.

Due to the referral of the State’s powers to make law in respect of industrial relations for the
private sector to the Cominonwealth, the State Government cannot itself legislate the
employment status of these workers.

Accordingly, to address the circumstances where ‘gig-economy’ food delivery services
structure the arrangeinents by which they engage workers to circumvent an employment
relationship, Maurice Blackburn and the Unions submit that the Queensland Government
should seek to grant the Queensland Industrial Relations Commission (QIRC) powers to
make determinations with respect to certain ‘contracts for carriage’ which apply to these
entities; akin to powers currently held by the New South Wales Industrial Relations
Comrnigsion (NSWIRC).

Maurice Blackburn and the Unions would be pleased to provide additional information about
the powers of the NSWIRC upon request.

22 pitps:/iwww.afr.com/news/policy/industrial-relations/uber-wins-fair-work-commission-case-over-drivers-
employment-rights-20180105-hOduqg
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Currently, to the extent that ‘gig-economy’ workers may formally be deemed independent
contractors, they are regulated by the Independent Contractors Act 2006 (Cth) (the ICA).

As noted above, the Federal Government has demonstrated no intent to regulate or to
address the systemic worker exploitation and market distortion caused by the advent of ‘gig-
economy’ entities.

Nevertheless, State Governments have expressly sought to regulate these industries and
legislation to this effect is expressly exempted from the operation of the ICA. Stecifically
section 7(2) of the ICA expressly excludes Chapter 6 of the Industrial Relations Act 1996
(NSW) and the Owner Drivers and Forestry Contractors Act 2005 (Vic) which has introduced
somewhat similar reforms to those in New South Wales.

Accordingly, to effect the desired changes, it is anticipated that it will be necessary to seek
that the Federal Parliament amend section 7(2) of the ICA to expressly exempt any
anticipated new section of the Industrial Relations Act 2016 (QLD).

In relation to Uber and other ride-sharing organisations, there are a number of legislative
options available:

¢ Insert a new section 91W(2) into The Transport Operations (Passenger Transport)
Act (1994) (the Act) which requires that all applications for the grant or renewal of a
booking entity authorisation be submitted with calculations demonstrating that, on its
lowest rate of pay (ie, excluding surge pricing from calculations), after all petrol,
insurance, operating and capital costs, net GST payments, income tax obligations
and superannuation contributions are taker into account, drivers will receive at least
the minimum they would be entitled to under the Passenger Vehicle Transportation
Award 2010 (including casual loading and penalty rates), or in the alternative, the
minimum they would be entitled to under the minimum wage, including casual
loading and all other entitlemants;

e Insert new section 91W(3} into the Act which requires that the Chief Executive reject
any applications for the grant or renewal of a booking entity authorisation when not
satisfied that the applicant’s driver pay rates are sufficient to meet the minimum they
would be entitled to undei the Passenger Vehicle Transportation Award 2010
(including casual 10ading and penalty rates), or in the alternative, the minimum they
would be entitled to under the minimum wage, including casual loading and all other
entitlements;

e Insert new 81Y(2) into the Act mandating that all booking entity authorisations are
subject to the condition that the holder provide records on a yearly basis confirming
that drivers are paid at least the minimum they would be entitled to under the
Passenger Vehicle Transportation Award 2010 (including casual loading and penalty
rates), or in the alternative, the minimum they would be entitled to under the
miriimum wage, including casual loading and all other entitiements;

» Insert new 91Y(3) allowing the chief executive to impose more regular driver

payment reporting as a condition of the entity’s booking entity authorisation, where
the entity has a history of underpaying its drivers within the last five years;
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e Insert new 91ZA(2)(iv) into the Act providing that a regulation may authorise the chief
executive to suspend or cancel a booking entity authorisation if the chief executive is
satisfied that the person or entity holding that authorisation has paid a driver or
drivers below the minimum they would be entitled to under the Passenger Vehicle
Transportation Award 2010 (including casual loading and penalty rates) after taking
into account all petrol, insurance, operating and capital costs, net GST payments,
income tax obligations and superannuation contributions, or alternativeiy, the
minimum they would be entitled to under the minimum wage, including casual
loading and entitlements;

¢ Insert new 91ZC into the Act allowing the chief executive to refuse the issuing of a
booking entity authorisation for up to three years in circumstarices where the entity
has a repeat history of underpaying drivers; and

e Insert new 91ZD into the Act mandating the imposition of sigriificant fines for every
day that an entity operates as a booking entity without the necessary booking entity
authorisation. This provision is suggested in light of Uber’s past history in
Queensland of operating unlawfully. Fines would rieed ia be significant to provide
Uber and other organisations the necessary motivation to obtain the booking entity
authorisation.

ii. Franchise arrangements.

Currently there are two instruments aimed at reguiating the franchising industry, namely
Australian Consumer Law (“ACL”") and the Franchising Code of Conduct (“the Code”) under
the Competition and Consumer Act 2010{Cth). The ACL has jurisdiction to deal with unfair
terms in franchise agreements and any misleading, deceptive or unconscionable conduct
against franchisees. However, as with other types of litigation, it is often not entered into
because of the costly and lengthy nature’

The Code regulates the conduct of franchising participants towards each other, usually
through franchise agreements; Thie ACCC regulates the Code and investigates alleged
breaches.

Maurice Blackburn has previously argued:?

e That a positive obligation should be placed on the franchisor to ensure its franchisees
are upholdirig the legislative requirements of workplace law. This positive obligation
should be articulated in the Code of Conduct; and

e That a Funder of Last Resort process should be embedded and mandated in the
Code of Conduct.

It is clear that any solution should be based in catching the conduct of franchisors, not
franchisees or workers who are left largely powerless under the status quo.

23 hitps://www.aph.gov.au/DocumentStore.ashx?id=26876526-f184-47fb-a2be-b767b5cfbf55&subld=566187
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An industry that was recently reformed to include licenses for very similar cases of
misconduct and unsound business practices was the labour hire industry in both Queensland
and Victoria. These reforms were based on a ‘fit and proper person’ test in the granting of a
license to operate in a jurisdiction.?*

As outsourcing and growth business models, both the labour hire and franchising iindustries
contemplate similar industrial issues and arrangements.

Therefore, Maurice Blackburn and the Unions submit that a licensing scherrie for franchises
could be a reasonable policy consideration.

Similar to Queensland’s Labour Hire Licensing Act (Qld) 2017, a franchising iicensing
scheme could have the following features:

e Require a franchisor to hold a license to operate in Queensland, issued by a licensing
body;

e Require a franchisor to pay for that license by way of annual fee, in line with the size
of the business;

e Be based on a fit and proper person’ test to ensure operators have a history of
compliance; and

¢ A contravention of the scheme incurs civil penalties.

The proposed licensing body would be funded via the licensing fees from franchisors and be
responsible for license registration, including termination, prosecuting contraventions and
enforcing license conditions. The unit would aiso:

o Establish a register of franchiscrs in Queensland in the interests of transparency;

» Manage an online resource for franchisees and workers to visit, which lists
franchisors and their businesses;

e Conduct investigations, inciuding entry powers, into allegations of noncompliance
with license requirements and share information with relevant bodies such as the
Fair Work Ombudsman/or/Fair Work Commission;

o Make determinaticis on contraventions, and

e Report annually o compliance, including data on the number of investigations
conducted and trie number of fines and penalties issued

The requirements of a license to be considered by the unit could include:

e A'‘minimum capital’ requirement of assets, revenue and cash flow;

e The identity of persons who, or ought to be, granted the license under the scheme;

e The/business record of the franchisor;

o Whether any individuals have been in breach under the scheme or any other
industrial law;

o Whether the license applicant is of good character and judgement; and

¢ Any other relevant matters.

24 | abour Hire Licensing Bill 2017 (Qld).
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Franchisors should be required to report on the following:

e Compliance with industrial laws, including work, health and safety laws;

¢ The number of franchisees engaged by them;

e The number of employees engaged by their franchisees;

¢ Information of payment to superannuation funds and Workcover premiums;
e Relevant franchise agreements which govern franchisees;

e Relevant industrial agreements which govern employees of franchisees; and
e ATO documents.

It is important to ensure that in the design of a Franchising Regulation Schieme that the onus
is on the franchisor to ensure compliance, due to the high degree of control franchisors have
in the franchise relationship.

CASE STUDIES

Over the following pages, we submit a number of case siudies drawn from the experience of
Maurice Blackburn and the Unions. They cover the range of employment types that we have
been describing in this submission.

We trust that these help to put a human face to the evidence provided in the submission.
1. In relation to Labour Hire arrangements

Labour Hire Company Night Star Cleaning provided workers through a labour hire company
to perform work at the Hans Primo Wacol plant, cleaning the facility after each day of
production. These workers mostly worked through the night.

An investigation by the relevait union, the AMIEU, found that workers:

e Were paid a flat rate of $18 per hour;

e Worked predomiriately employed at night between the hours of 10pm to 6am;

o Were paid approximately $9 per hour under award rates;

e Were not paid any superannuation;

e Were not provided pay slips;

e Were'told thiey were working as a contractor but did not even have to provide an ABN
numbket;

e Payment was made into their accounts with no reference to who deposited the funds;

¢ /No documentation exists at all between the employee and the employer, only phone
numbers;

e Were required to provide finger scanning at the site which provided the AMIEU with
proof/evidence of the employee start and finish times.

After exposing the exploitation, the AMIEU had extensive discussions, including with Night
Star representatives and meetings with senior members of Hans Primo. The labour hire
company disappeared from the site and the employees were employed by a cleaning
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company which paid proper award rates of pay The union understands that the director of
Night Star left the country.

Approximately 23 Indian workers joined the AMIEU, mostly holding partner visas. There
were/are approximately 80 Indian visa workers employed at the site. The workers are now
being paid award rates.

2. Hans Primo Wacol

At the same site, underpayments were also occurring under a different arrangement. The
union found:

o Widespread under award payments to Korean 417 visa workers. Between $1 and
$3:50 per hour under award rates;

e No overtime rates and no shift allowances;

e Payslips that clearly showed under award rates;

e Best link and Bayer were the labour hire providers but sub-contractors to BE poultry -
employees moved between Bayer and Best Link after six months but stayed at the
same worksite (avoiding the six month rule);

» Threats were made to Korean workers. A/labour hire supervisor parked outside of the
AMIEU office to watch who was attending meetings;

e The Branch Secretary wrote to Hans Frime’s National HR manager;

¢ The Branch Secretary and Industriai Officer flew to Sydney to meet with the
company; and

¢ Following negotiations a six figure back pay was reached.

3. Employment arrangements for short-stay temporary visa workers

Short stay visa workers, especially thiose on ‘backpacker visas’ are employed in large
numbers in the meat processing industry.

In almost all cases, the direct employer is an on-hire labour company which supplies labour
to a meat processing sstablishment. Such arrangements allow ‘backpacker visa’ workers to
be employed at award rates, rather than the higher enterprise agreement rates which apply
to direct empleyees of the establishment. Despite the advantage which accrues to
employers in engaging visa workers on inferior award rates, non-compliance with even
minimum safety net entitlements is rampant.

The AMiEU's practical experience is that it is commonplace for these arrangements to
involve:

e Underpayment of basic award conditions, often due to blatant disregard of award
entitlements;

e Attempts by the union to ensure award compliance are hindered by inadequate
record keeping by the employers and intimidation of visa workers;
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Many of the labour hire companies operating in this sector are “$2 companies” with
no significant assets or capital, allowing them to go into liquidation if attempts to
enforce entitiements are successful;

Inappropriate deductions from workers’ wages;

Disregard of workplace health and safety obligations, including at least some
instances of failing to ensure workers are vaccinated against Q Fever (which, if
contracted can become a chronic, debilitating condition);

When exploitative practices by labour suppliers are brought to the attention of meat
industry employers, the invariable reaction has been a refusal to irivestigate or take
remedial action. Employers invariably (and often, implausibly) puiport to have no
knowledge of unlawful activity on the part of the labour hire corapany, and wilfully
ignore any indication to the contrary; and

Legal processes for the recovery of wages are often unrealistic when short-stay visa
workers have to return to their home country long before these processes are
completed.

Green Mountain Abattoir Coominya

The union estimates approximately 80 Taiwanese workers on 417 visa are employed at this
site. We estimate there are approximately 200 production workers (plus admin, maintenance,
management etc.) There were three Taiwanese workers who have made a formal complaint
with the FWO. The AMIEU have assisted them in making that application.

The evidence gathered from meeting and sp=aking with the workers showed:

5.

Use of an ABN in a situation where workers are employees and not genuine
contractors;

Underpayment of minimum award wages;

Unpaid overtime;

Flat rates of pay;

No taxation amounts deducied by the employer;

The first two days warked for no pay as to “assess ability” to perform job;

Employees are not provided with pay slips;

No superannuation paid,;

Obligated to provide a $600 bond for a job. The $600 would be refunded only if the
employee stayed in employment for 6 months. Each employee would have $100 a
week deducted from their wage until the bond was reached,

Forced intc renting from certain housing. Up to 15 people can live in one home.
$20/pw to'share a room. $70/pw to share a lounge room. Some were forced to sleep
on the floor (property searches show that the Plant Manager had an interest in five of
the seven properties used to house Taiwanese workers); and

Cost of PPE (Q fever) charged to employees, in contravention of the Queensland
Work Health and Safety Act.

TASK Labour Hire
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The AMIEU has uncovered another labour hire company (TASK) who predominantly employ
Taiwanese workers. This company is becoming a major player in supplying labour to the
meat industry. They are registered as required under the new licencing laws. What the union
has uncovered about them so far is:

e Have an office in Taipei Taiwan where each week dozens of Taiwanese workers are
interviewed for work in Australia;

e Paying award rates but freezing at entry level rates. This is a training wage and little
training is needed to perform meat packing duties;

¢ Incorrect classification rates;

* Requiring workers to pay for Q fever vaccinations before commencement of
employment;

o Compulsory medicals and drug testing at nominated medical centres with inflated
medical fees;

¢ Non-compliant Individual Flexibility Agreement;

e Text message exchanges between company and workers (in'Mandarin) with threats
for asking about wage rates;

e On call workers — they are told they have to wait for work each day to get the call. If
they do this for a period of time they then will be prévided a more secure structure of
casual work;

e Advertising for boys only;

e Asking height and weight when applying fora job;

e One of the directors was involved with underpayments of other employees with
another company; and

e Threats of legal action to one former employee for informing workers of their rights on
a social media website.

6. Uber

With Uber a system of ratings is used for customer feedback. When our client’s ratings fell
below a certain standard due tc inexplicable reasons, his account with Uber was deactivated.

There being no place or tiibuiial to agitate the driver’s grievances, an unfair dismissal was
lodged. Soon, the driver-found himself opposed by high priced lawyers acting for Uber. To be
successful, the driver was going to have to prove that he was an employee, not an
independent contracior.

In the end, some urifavourable decisions on the point from other jurisdictions and the huge
obstacles facing this driver led to him discontinuing the proceedings.
7. Within the taxi industry

A Bailee taxi driver was aggrieved that a substantial fare allocated to him had been taken by
another driver.

The driver lodged a small claim with QCAT, attempting to rely upon the sub-rules of the
company that purported to regulate driver behaviour.
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Ultimately, the claim failed as the sub-rules were said not to create a contract between the
Driver and the company.

8. Within the courier industry

An independent contract courier had his contract terminated abruptly. The TWU assisted
him in seeking a small debt/minor civil dispute by way of payment of reascriable notice.
Judgement was ultimately entered by default in the contractors’ favour.

However, the respondent was permitted to use lawyers to have the default judgement set
aside. QCAT then subsequently dismissed the claim as not being “liquidated”.

The contractor, sceptical of QCAT after this experience, engaged his own lawyers to pursue
the matter in the Magistrates’ Court.

The TWU has assisted many owner/drivers and other inndependent contractors with
recovering debts owing to them. This assistance generaliy consists of drawing small
claims/minor civil disputes for filing with QCAT. QCAT howaver has a culture regarding legal
representation that in the union’s experience rarely sees a party refused legal representation.

This places owner/drivers and independent.contractors at a distinct disadvantage in
representing themselves.

8. Within the public service

Together experienced significantly different responses from Queensland Health than it did
from the Department of Transport and Main Roads in relation to similar instances of
underpayments.

In both instances the employees were meant to be paid for a meal break, so an eight hour
shift for continuous shift workers at the Gold Coast Hospital and Health Service (‘the
GCHHS’) should include araid half hour meal break, and a 9.5hr shift worked by a
Department of Transport/ & Main Roads (‘DTMR’) shift worker should include a half hour
meal break.

Neither entity was paying the half hour shift breaks, so GCHHS workers were working 8.5
hours, including an unpaid half hour break, and DTMR were working 10 hours, including an
unpaid half hour break.

In both cases the industrial instruments meant that the meal break took the workers into

overtime, and so not only were they not being paid at all for that half hour, they should have
been paid that half hour at overtime rates.

Page 23

RTI Document No. 243 of 322



Maurice Blackburn Lawyers submission to the Inquiry into Wage Theft in Queensland

Employees at GCHHS raised this issue with management in 2012 and requested a review by
HR, but the rosters continued in operation and the employees continued to be paid in breach
of their industrial instrument.

The employees raised the issue with Together in 2015 at which time they formally
corresponded with the employer. The union received correspondence in late 2015 admitting
the conduct was not compliant with the industrial instrument and proposing an arrangement
to pay the affected employees a settlement based on them receiving a payment of 36 mins of
ordinary time for each shift. We responded that the settlement should be based on payment
at the overtime rates, per the industrial agreement.

Together had to notify of a dispute under the Industrial Relations Act 1998, at'which point
Queensland Health, representing the GCHHS, denied liability.

Contrast the behaviour of TMR, where they identified the error as part of some internal
review and arranged a meeting with the union to inform them of the issue. They then entered
into discussions of how to manage the issue, such as making arrangements to calculate
back pay to be paid and informing staff on the issues and actions to be taken. This involved
making an immediate change to the work pattern so the issue would not continue into the
future and senior management sent out communications to all affected staff identifying the
error, apologising to staff and indicating how paymerits to rectify the error were going to be
processed.

At no time did TMR try and deny the error or arguie there was no liability, they acted as a
model litigant and showed genuine leadership on'a sensitive issue.

It was only that the same type of situation arose in DTMR and the union were able to advise
the QIRC of the actions taken by DTMR that GCHHS and Queensland Health entered into a
settlement where the 30 mins on each shift was paid at double time. The settlement figure
was in the order of $4.5M for affected staff. So despite employees raising the issue in 2012
the employer continued to underpay the employees in breach of the industrial instrument.
Payment was not effected until 20186.

By not trying to deny the issue like GCHHS did in 2012 and Queensland Health did in 2016,
TMR acted to prevent @ practice generating future costs to the state.

10. Regional shepping centre

In February 2018, United Voice Queensland (UVQ) were contacted by members employed
as cleaners at atarge regional shopping centre. The cleaners had performed cleaning duties
at the centre for various employers over a few years. A cleaning contractor "SSS" held the
contract bui had regularly sub contracted other companies to engage the labour under a
dubious pyramid sub-contracting scheme.

The various companies were irregular in their compliance with the award, keeping records
and providing taxation information.
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The various companies engaging the labour had come and gone, and the employees had
periodically been placed back on the "SSS" payroll. None of the transferring of employees
from one employer's payroll to another seems to have been effected in accordance with
regular industrial processes.

Employees contacted United Voice when they were told that "SSS" was, once again, not
going to be their employer, but there was a new contractor "JS".

The employees were told that the new pay rate was "$20" per hour with wages paid directly
into their bank accounts by cash deposit.

Employees were asked to complete new "PAYE" forms, which did not inciude details of the
new employer. Employees were not provided with any details of the new employer other than
a mobile phone contact number and a contact's first name.

Employees were threatened that if they contacted the union they wetild be sacked. It
transpired that employees remained working at the shopping centre, performing identical
duties.

Employees were not provided with payslips and received reduced remuneration for the same
hours of work, deposited into their bank accounts. No detail cf the payer was made available
to employees.

One of the employees called "JS's" contact number and enquired about her payslip. "JS’s”
contact stated that none of the employees were empicyed by "JS" yet, because they hadn't
provided "JS" with an ABN.

Another employee was absent through iliness, provided a medical certificate as per usual
practice to "SSS' and did not receive any sick pay.

It became clear, that "SSS" had intended to pyramid sub contract out the employees to "JS"
who would employ all the cleaners undersham independent contracts under "ABNs" at
reduced pay, performing exactly the same duties.

The union wrote to the shopping cenire management and "SSS" setting out, inter alia, our
concerns about potential breaches of the federal employment laws.

The union received a reggonse from "SSS" advising that it no longer intended to engage "JS"
to employ the cleaners, and that "SSS" intended to engage them all under the award.

Our members subseqlently began receiving payslips from "SSS”, but discovered that they
were engaged as ‘casuals', despite working the same regular rosters. After further
intervention from the-uinion, employees were re-classified as permanent part time.

1. Case Study: Cleaners compensated for improper underpayments by sub-
contractors

UVQ secured financial compensation for union members who were paid a flat hourly rate for
weekends and nights for cleaning two major shopping centres in Queensland.

United Voice organisers conducting shopping centre visits uncovered improper practices

where a major cleaning contractor, Quad Services, had sub contracted out some of the work
to smaller subcontracting companies.
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The sub-contractors were underpaying cleaners, breaching the cleaning award, and paying a
flat hourly pay rate for all hours worked, including weekends and nights.

The union initiated proceedings in the Fair Work Commission.

As a result of the union’s actions, Quad subsequently terminated the services of both sub-
contracting companies, employed the cleaners directly and financially compensaied them.

One of the cleaners affected, United Voice member Hiren Patel stated:

“United Voice worked very hard to ensure that our underpayments were rectified.

A union organiser visited our site several times throughout the process aird-showed us how
to understand our Award so we can recognise any underpayments if it ever happens again.
I recommend to all cleaners that they contact United Voice if they have any-concerns about
their pay rate... Thanks to United Voice | am much more confident in speaking up and
questioning work practices if | think something isn’t right.”

In a joint public statement Quad and United Voice stated:
JOINT STATEMENT

“Quad and United Voice have been in dispute about empicvees who had claims of
underpayment. The union had been contacted by its members but had been unable to
resolve the matter with Quad. United Voice took the dispute to the Fair Work Commission.

Quad agreed to investigate the claims of United VVaice and found that improper practices had
occurred involving two sub-contractors who supplied labour to the two contracts in question.

The sub-contractors had engaged in variois practices including underpayments and award
breaches none of which were consistentwith the commitments Quad has given to
United Voice and the overall culture of the Quad business.

Quad did not condone the actions of the sub-contractors and committed to resolving the
dispute on terms agreeable to United Voice and its members and ensuring that the improper
practices did not occur again.

Quad subsequently terminated the services of the sub-contractors, and compensated the
employees accordingly.

Quad agrees that the industry benefits from having United Voice represent the interests of

thoe thatinnnAa AF Alnnsioirn sdhn warnvls im dha il eondim s
IO UIVUOUNTUO U WICCH 0T O/ WY WU T LG (HIUUouU y.

United Voice accepts that Quad is genuine in seeking to change and improve its relationship
with the union in Queensland.

Quad and-Uinited Voice agree that both parties will commit to a professional working
relationship thaizamong other things will enable the union to visit work sites and talk to
employees in a climate that emphasises the positive aspect of union membership.

12. Case Study: Jupiters Casino outsourcing to Challenger Cleaning

In December 2012, United Voice was notified by Jupiters Hotel & Casino (Jupiters) of its decision to
outsource housekeeping, facility cleaning and stewarding functions to Challenger Cleaning
(Challenger). These workers were at the time directly employed, and covered by an enterprise
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agreement (EA). Challenger did not have an enterprise agreement (EA) and its workforce was
covered by the Modern Award (the Award).

Upon the outsourcing arrangement being completed in early 2013, United Voice members
immediately began to raise concerns around their conditions of employment. The most common
complaint from members was from part time workers (who made up the vast majority of transferring
workers) having their regular hours reduced. Challenger relied upon the workers' contracts with
Jupiters, which provided a broad spread of hours. Effectively, part time contracts of employment
allowed the employer to roster workers anywhere between 10 and 37.5 hours pei-week. Workers
who would regularly expect to be rostered, for example, 30 hours per week with lupiters saw their
hours reduced sharply to the minimum required in the employment contract. This understandably
had a severely detrimental impact on these workers.

The rationale of Challenger was clear. Their plan was to starve out transferring workers, who
retained the higher benefits contained in the EA in favour of new, cheaper workers, who could be
covered by the Award.

Notwithstanding Challenger's dubious motives, this activity was a foreseeable consequence of the
outsourcing arrangement.

However, as Challenger's operations ramped up, United Voice began hearing reports of more
dubious employment arrangements. Particularly, United Voice members began reporting the use of
foreign labour, usually international students, who respehded to job offers posted on "Gumtree" and
other like services. These workers were ordinarily paid fiat rates of pay and on a cash-in-hand basis.

Following lengthy and extensive investigations, United Voice commenced Federal Court proceedings
against Challenger. However, upon these proceediings reaching court, United Voice was made aware
that Challenger (who by this time had established several different corporate entities) had gone into
liquidation. ‘

At a similar time, following adverse publicity-and campaigning by United Voice, Jupiters made the
decision to bring housekeeping, faciiity cleaning and stewarding services back 'in house’.

13. Case Study: Inspection of wages record

A United Voice official visiting @ Club and talking with employees began to form suspicions
about the payment practices of the catering sub-contractor operating within the club.

The union had quite a/few members employed by the club, but only a handful of members
who were employed oy the sub-contractor.

Most employees of the sub-contractor had been discouraged from talking with union officials
and were reluctant to do so.

Throughout visits between March and July 2017, an organiser was informed by various
employees that the caterer was underpaying its staff, paying cash in hand and kept two sets
of books. The organiser was unable to verify this information because of the reluctance of the
affected staff to talk with her and because of the restrictions on her right to inspect records.

The organiser conducted ‘suspected contraventions’ visits on 24 and 25 July 2017, and

gathered further information, but no evidence. As a result, the organiser applied to inspect
non-member records.
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The application to inspect non-member records was filed with FWC on 4 August 2017. The
matter was not listed until 1 September. The matter was heard ex parte, so was uncontested,
however, the organiser submitted a detailed affidavit setting out the basis of the suspected
contraventions, and the reasons why it was necessary to inspect non-member records.

A decision and Order to inspect non-member records did not issue until 5 October.
On 27 October, the catering contractor applied to re-open the matter due to having nof been
heard before the order was issued. On 6 November, the union provided the caterer’s

representative with a copy of the official’s affidavit provided in support of granting the orders.

After receipt of the affidavit setting out the grounds for suspecting contraventions, the
catering company’s representative provided employment records.

The union’s inspection of the records revealed no contraventions.

Six months later, an employee of the catering company informed the union that the catering
company kept two sets of books, one of which recorded ‘casii in hand’ payments. The union
tried to get the evidence from this particular worker, but he‘travelled overseas. To date,
despite holding suspicions based upon information received, the union is unable to
substantiate that underpayments and breaches have occurred.

This example illustrates the difficulties faced by unions in investigating such issues and the
timelines experienced.

14. Case Study: Fiona and Brian — Peninsula Fair Shopping Centre cleaners

Two cleaners, Fiona Quemuel and her partner, Brian Toieman, both work side by side performing
identical work, however, Brian was paid the awaid rate and Fiona was paid below the award due to
the continuing operation of an expired ‘Workchoices’ agreement.

Both work at Peninsula Fair Shopping centra ai Kippa-Ring on the north side of Brisbane,

Both wear the same uniform that of the principal contractor, have the same supervisor, have the
same tasks to perform but both did ot have the same employer.

Brian is directly employed by Trident Cleaning who has the contract to clean and provide security
services for Peninsula Fair shogping centre, but Fiona was indirectly employed by Trident through a
labour hire arrangement with a’labour hire company trading as Workplace Central.

Fiona was on a flat rate of pay and paid the same flat hourly rate regardless of the day of the week,
or the time of the day arnight which she works. Fiona’s hourly rate was simply the award minimum

base rate.

Brian is paia-underihe terms and conditions of the Cleaning Services Award 2010 so he receives
penaltyrates at night, on the weekend and on Public Holidays.

Fiona was not paid any penalties or allowances.
Fiona stated to UVQ:

“I expressed an interest in cleaning work at the Peninsula Fair Shopping Centre, as my
partner Brian already worked there for Trident. | gave my CV to the shopping centre
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management and to Trident.

Trident management called me to a meeting at their offices and offered me a casual
position. | filled out paperwork and provided my bank and superannuation details.

About two weeks after my meeting with Trident, | received an email welcoming me to
‘Workplace Central’ and stating that | would be paid $23.08 per hour and that Trident
Cleaning was my host employer.

| rang Trident as no one had mentioned anything to me about working for a different company and |
hadn’t heard of ‘Workplace Central’.

The Trident supervisor told me that all new starters are engaged through Workplace
Central as casuals on a flat pay rate regardless of the day or time you work.

| worked out over a four week period, working just 33 hours that | was paid $100.00 less than the
award.

| spoke with a United Voice organiser who visited the site. The-arganiser explained to me that I was
actually employed by another company related to Workplace Cenirai, which had an expired
‘Workchoices’ era certified agreement still operating. The agreement did not provide for any penalty
rates or allowances.

Workplace Central had a labour hire arrangement with Trident that allowed them to provide cleaners
at below award conditions.

I think it is unfair that some of us at the shopping cenitre who wear Trident uniforms and work
alongside cleaners directly employed by Trident are not paid penalty rates or allowances, when we
perform the exact same tasks every day.”

United Voice Queensland officials, have negctiated for Fiona to be directly employed by Trident, and
she will now be paid under the award, and receive penalties and allowances, like her husband Brian.

uvQ subsequently negotiated directly with Workplace Central who agreed to terminate their
“Workchoices” agreement fronv1 January 2018.

15. Case Study: Wyiinum Plaza shopping security guards ‘
Bruce Lillywhite, Tim Balstad and Leanne Mackay

Bruce Lillywhite; Tim Bolstad and Leanne Mackay also worked for Trident under an indirect labour
hire arrangement through Workplace Central as security guards at Wynnum Plaza shopping centre.

Bruce was surprised after commencing work at the shopping centre to discover he did not receive
any higher pay rates for working overtime, late shifts or weekends.

A wage comparison over just one fortnight in October 2016, showed that Bruce had earned $180 less
than the minimum award rates for the same period.

Two other security guards at Wynnum Plaza, Tim and Leanne work identical fortnightly shift rosters,
on the first week of the roster, they are paid $325 a week below the award, on the second week the

hit is only $20a week below the award!

Page 29

RTI Document No. 249 of 322



Maurice Blackburn Lawyers submission to the Inquiry into Wage Theft in Queensland

Over their roster cycle they, like Bruce, are about $180 per week below the award.

United Voice negotiated for Bruce, Tim and Leanne to be directly employed by Trident, so that they
be paid penalty rates, instead of under the labour hire zombie agreement.

The sting in the tail however is that Trident Security had their own Zombie Agreement!/Aithough
their agreement expired in 2011, it provided pay rates above the Workplace Central CA but beiow
the award.

Trident security agreed with United Voice to terminate their own zombie agreeirient-and pay its
security guards under the award.

16. Case Study: Stamford Plaza

In 2016, United Voice Organiser, Mr David Malley exercised his right to enter the Stamford
Plaza Hotel in Brisbane to hold discussions with employees working on the premises
pursuant to section 484 of the Fair Work Act 2009 (Cth).

Arising from those discussions, Mr Malley discovered employees working in the
housekeeping department had been outsourced to a labour hire company trading as Style
Hospitality.

The outsourced workers were represented as independent contractors and paid under an
ABN; however, the indicia of their work arrangemernts suggested that they were more likely
to be employees and not independent contracters.

Some employees of Style Hospitality were engaged as employees and others were
represented as being independent contractors. Both groups of workers performed the same
duties.

United Voice discovered the outsourced employees were paid on a ‘per room basis’ and
those deductions were made for tuniforms, cleaning chemicals and equipment supplied by
Style Hospitality. Cleaning chemiicais and equipment were charged at rate of 5.2% of their
pay per fortnight.

United Voice also discovered that deductions were made for Public Liability and Accident
insurance cover at a rate of $49.55 per fortnight.

These deductions seemed excessive relative to the outsourced employees’ modest earnings,
and the value received by employees for their outlay.

United Voice considered that it was unlikely the ‘per room rate’ would provide sufficient
compensatiorirelative to the minimum wage rates and other entitlements payable under the
Award.

United Voice also considered that it was unlikely the deductions made by Style Hospitality
would be permitted under the Act.

United Voice met with Stamford Hotel management and advised them of the union’s

concerns. Stamford Hotel representatives cooperated with the union and requested that we
deal with Style Hospitality directly and advise Stamford Hotel of our findings.
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Style Hospitality provided information and documents to the union including a copy of the
schedule of payment per room cleaned and copies of invoices/pay slips.

United Voice formed a view that the housekeepers were likely to be incorrectly classified as
independent contractors and underpaid relative to the award.

Style Hospitality then converted staff to employees and ceased the ‘independent contracting’
arrangements.

The union provided a brief report to the Commonwealth Employment Ombudsiman, the
Australian Tax Office and the Stamford Hotel.

This situation was unusual in that the Hotel and the Contractor co-opéarated with the union
and provided information to us.

Summary of Recommendations
1. That wage theft be criminalised.

2. That rather than adjusting the existing provisions of the criminal code, a separate
legislative scheme should be implemented to criminalise wage theft, balancing the
needs of business and the rights of workers.

3. That to this end the inquiry consider the development of a Wage Theft Act.

4. That the potential provisions of a Waga Theft Act include:
e Strict liability offences;
e Tiered levels of conducted amounting to wage theft; and
o Tiered levels of penalty.

5. That the prosecution bear the burden of proof to prove that the conduct was engaged
in without a reasonable excuse.

6. That industrial organisations should be given standing to prosecute wage theft, and to
be able to seek costs fram an employer on a successful prosecution.

7. The Queensland Government grant the Queensland Industrial Relations Commission
(QIRC) powers tcinake determinations as to the status of workers in ride sharing
arrangements, with respect to certain ‘contracts for carriage’, akin to powers currently
held by the Ne'w South Wales Industrial Relations Commission (NSWIRC).

8. The Transpuit Operations (Passenger Transport) Act (1994) be amended to better
regulate Uher and other ride sharing providers, to ensure these services do not allow
for wage theft.

9./ ‘That the inquiry investigate state and federal options for ensuring that workers
petforming work for ‘gig-economy’ food delivery services such as UberEats, Foodora
and Deliveroo are properly be considered employees.

10. That a licensing scheme for franchisors be considered, based on the licensing system
for labour hire operators
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11. That the inquiry consider ways to ‘level the playing field’ such that employers who are
doing the right thing by their workers are not put at a commercial disadvantage to
those who are not.

12. That the Queensland Government work with and through unions as a primary means

of information distribution to the workforce, for information pertaining to minimum
employee entitlements and recourse available in the event of employer misconduct
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From: Evan Moorhead

Sent: Thursday, 31 May 2018 6:53 PM
To: David Barbagallo

Subject: Re: Invite List for AQP event

Good call. Will fix

Evan Moorhead

On 31 May 2018, at 6:52 pm, David Barbagallo <David.Barbagallo@ministerial.ald.gov.au> wrote:

Evan, Tourism ?7? db

<image003.png>David Barbagallo
Chief-of-Staff

Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MP
Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade

P 07 3719 7015
1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002

From: Evan Moorhead
Sent: Thursday, 31 May 2018 1:39 PM

To: David Barbagallo <David.Barbagallo @ministerial.qld.gov.au>

Subject: Invite List for AQP event
Importance: High

e

Still waiting on stakeholder list froim De Brenni. Let me know if these work or not.

| need to get them to DPC tomorrow.

AQP Invite List

General

Clark Kirby, Village Roadshow
Kylie Pashen, Remserv

Rod Hodgson, Maurice Blackburn
Ros Mcl.ennan QCU

Alex Scott; Together

John Battams, ALP
Julie-Anne Campbell, ALP
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

Laura O'Brien, Deloitte

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

Bruce Davidson, Davidson Regcruitment

Alys Gagnon, The Parenthoocd

Graham Moloney, Queensiand Teachers Union
Gary Bullock UV

Health

Michelle Trute, Diabetes Queensland

Beth Mohle; Queensland Nurses Union

AMA President

Heart foundation

Stroke Foundation

Deadly Choices & IUIH

Belinda Drew - Community Services Industry Alliance
QCOSS

Richard Nelson - National Disability Service
Paige Armstrong - Queenslanders with Disability

Safer Communities
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lan Leavers, QPU
Queensland Law Society

<image004.png>Evan Moorhead
Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MP
Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade

P 073719 7013 M CTPI - Personal Information

1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
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From: Evan Moorhead

Sent: Monday, 26 February 2018 10:59 AM
To: Carly Donaldson

Subject: Re: Meeting with Ben Hubbard in March

Of course, works for me

FEvan Moorhead

On 26 Feb 2018, at 10:55 am, Carly Donaldson

Thanks Evan

CTPI - Personal Information

wrote:

| will send through a diary apt. Ben has asked if we could push the catch ug'back to 11am just in
allow him some leeway at the airport.

I hope this is ok.

Kind regards

Carly Donaldson | Executive Assistant

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Level 21, 380 La Trobe Street, Melbourne VIC 3020
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au
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Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian {aw firm certified to the international ISO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please corisidar the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential-and intznded solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this emailis strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any print¢
copy and do not disclose or use its information in @y way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: http:/Avww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-

policy.aspx

THE MELBOURNE OFFICE HAS MOVED

Maurice Blackburn's Meibourne office has moved to 380 LaTrobe Street in 2018. The phone, fax and postal addres
will remain the same.

From: Evan Moorhea
Sent: Monday, 26 Fe
To: Carly Danaldson

'mailto:Evan.Moorhead@ministerial.gld.gov.au]

uary 2018 11:13 AM

Subject: Re: Meeting with Ben Hubbard in March

Hi Carly

Let’s meet at 1 William St.

Evan Moorhead

On 26 Feb 2018, at 7:23 am, Carly Donaldson [ Fereena nermaten

wrote:
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Morning Evan
Thank you for your reply and confirmation of your email address.

| will send through a diary invite for a coffee at 10.30am on the 27t March. Ben is
happy to meet somewhere that suits you, are you able to suggest a suitable place?
He will be coming straight from the airport.

Many thanks

Carly Donaldson | Executive Assistant

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Level 21, 380 La Trobe Street, Melbourne VIC 3000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au
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Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international iSO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before/printitig this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, ar
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this emait in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, des
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information fegarding Waurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: http:/Avww.mauriceblackburn.com.au
policy.aspx

THE MELBOURNE OFFICE HAS MOVED
Maurice Blackburn's Melbourne office has movedi to- 380 LaTrobe Street in 2018. The phone, fax and postal

will remain the same.

From: Evan MoorheadCTPl - Personal Information

Sent: Thursday, 22 February 2018 4:08 PiM

To: Carly Donaldson

Subject: Re: Meeting with Ben Hubbard.in March

Hi Carly,

My new job is great - I am free anytime on those days. Let me know what
suits Ben.

You can get me on evan.moorhead@ministerial.qld.gov.au

Evan

On Thu, Feb22. 2018 at 12:55 PM, Carly Donaldson

CTPI - Personal {niarmatisii N
NG wrote:

Degar Evan

I hope this email finds you well. | apologise for the email to your personal email
address however the work email address we previously had bounced back.

Ben Hubbard will be up in our Brisbane office on the 27t and 28" of March and was
wondering if would have a free time in your calendar to catch up for a coffee? His
diary is flexible at this stage so he is happy to work in with you if you are available.
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| look forward to hearing from you.

Kind regards

Carlv Donaldson | Executive Assistant

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Level 21, 380 La Trobe Street, Melbourne VIC 3000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au
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Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international 1SO 8001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the enviretament before printing this email. -

This email and any files transmitied with it are confidential and intended solely fof the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, ar
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohitited/If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, des
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional intcrmation regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: http:/iwww.mauriceblackburn.com.at
policy.aspx

THE MELBOURNE OFFICE HAS MOVED
Maurice Blackburn's Melbourne office has moved to 380 LaTrobe Street in 2018. The phone, fax and postal
will remain the same.

This email, together with any attachments, is intended for the named recipient(s) only; and
may contain privileged and confidential information. If received in error, you are asked to
inform the sender as quickly as possible and delete this email and any copies of this from
your computer sysiem network.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s)
that relies on it; any form of disclosure, modification, distribution and /or publication of this

email i$-also prohibited.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views
of the Queensland Government. '

Please consider the environment before printing this email.
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Megan Lederhose

TR

From: Rodney HodgsonCTPl - Personal Information
Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 8:36 AM

To: Evan Moorhead

Cc: Katelyn Dougherty; Jacqueline Mahon
Subject: RE: this morning

Thanks, Evan.

Rodney Hodgson | Principal

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers [x] ===
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brishane QLD 4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

1§ (=4 |

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international ISO 9001:2008 guality standard.
We are proud o be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additionat information regarding Maurice Biackburn's privacy policy, click here: http://iwww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx

From: Evan Moorhead [mailto:Evan.Moorhead@ministerial.gid.gov.au]

Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 8:33 AM

TO: Rodney HOdgson CTPI - Personal Information

Cc: Katelyn Dougherty <Katelyn.Dougherty@ministeiial.qld.gov.au>; Jacqueline Mahon

CTPI - Personal Information

Subject: RE: this morning

Spoke to Sharon. She and Katelyn are working to resolve.

Evan Moorhead
Office of the Hoi: Anhastacia Palaszczuk MP
Premier of Queerisiand and Minister for Trade

~

P 07 3719 7013 M CTTi - Personal Information

e 1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
Government

C7PI - Personal Information

From: Rodney Hodgson
Sent: Monday, 2 May 2018 8:29 AM

To: Evan Moorhead <Evan.Moorhead@ministerial.qld.gov.au>

Cc: Katelyn Dougherty <Katelyn.Dougherty@ministerial.qld.gov.au>; Jacqueline Mahon

CTPI - Personal Information

Subject: FW: this morning

As discussed.
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Rodney Hodgson | Principal

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers E g
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brisbane QLD 4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

(x4 |5 |

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Austrafian law firm certified to the international ISO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This ernail and any files transrmitted with it are confidential and intended solely far the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are riot the/intended recipient, any use,
disserination, fonvarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply-errzil/delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: hitp:/Asavw.nauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx

From: Rodney Hodgson

Sent: Monday, 21 May 2018 8:00 AM

To: Janene Hillhouse (Janene.Hillhouse @oir.gld.gov.au) <Janene.Hillhouse @oir.gld.gov.au>
Cc: Paul Goldsbrough (Paul.Goldsbrough@oir.qgld.gov.au) <Paul.Goldsbrough@oir.ald.gov.au>;
CTPI - Personal @moray.com.au; Jacq ueline I\/lahon CTPI - Personal Information

Information

Subject: this morning

Hi Janene
The documents came through, regrettably, very late.

Members of a panel such as this would ideally be expected to consull with other stakeholders (in my case, at least
committee members of ALA). This has been rendered inipossicle by the late forwarding of the materials.

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
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brisbane Qi-D 4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

(=13 [ =5 |25

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international ISO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutal. Plaase consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printirig’or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in ercor please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: http:/Awww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx

This email, together with any attachments, is intended for the named recipient(s) only; and may contain
privileged and confidential information. If received in error, you are asked to inform the sender as quickly
as possible and delete this email and any copies of this from your computer system network.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it;

2
RTI Document No. 260 of 322



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

Sent: Thursday, 13 December 2018 1:27 PM

To: Geoff Breusch; Peter Nibbs; Denise Spinks; Greg Fowler
Subject: Royal Commission Implementation

FYI

Maurice Blackburn are releasing a report on State Govt implementation of recommendations tormorrow to coincide
with the 12 month anniversary of the report.

Qld gets at B- and is middle of the pack.

Evan Moorhead
Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MP
Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade

P07 3719 7013 MCTPI - Personal Information
1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
Government
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Megan Lederhose

From: Jade Thompson <CTPI - Persronal Information

Sent: Friday, 27 July 2018 5:38 PM

To: Evan Moorhead

Cc: Ben Hubbard

Subject: Wage theft sub v
Attachments: 180723 MB Submission Qld Wage Theft 270718.docx
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

<15 x|

Maurice Blackbum is a leading Australian law firm certified to the internation2i {SO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use-of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, fonwarding, printing or copying of this emait is stricily prohibited. If you have received this emait in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: hitp:/Aww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx
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Maurice Blackburn Pty Limited
30 July 2018 ABN 21 106 657 949

Leve! 21
380 Latrobe Street
Metbourne VIC 3000

Committee Secretary DX 466 Melbourne
Education, Employment and Small Business Committee T (03) 9605 2700
Parliament House F (03) 9258 9600
George Street

Brisbane Qid 4000

By email: eesbc@parliament.qld.gov.au

Dear sir/madam,

We welcome the opportunity to provide feedback in relation to the Education, Employment
and Small Business Committee Inquiry into wage-thefi in Queensland.

This submission is made on behalf of Maurice Blackburn, the Australian Manufacturing
Workers Union Queensland, the Australian Meat industry Employees Union Queensland, the
Together Union Queensland, the Transpert Workers Union Queensland, United Voice
Queensland and the Communications, Electrical, Electronic, Energy, Information, Postal,
Plumbing and Allied Services Union of Ausiralia — Plumbing Division Queensland.

Please do not hesitate to contact me arnd my colleagues on 07 3016 0300 if we can further
assist with the Working Group’s important work.

Yours faithfully,

Giri Sivaraman
MAURICE BLACKBUJRN
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Maurice Blackburn Lawyers submission to the Inquiry into Wage Theft in Queensland
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Maurice Blackburn Lawyers submission to the Inquiry info Wage Theft in Queensland

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
often provided free of charge as it is firm policy in many areas to give the first Gonsultation for
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
diseases, superannuation, negligent financial and other advice, and consumer and
commercial class actions. The Queensland arm of Maurice Blackburn has also contributed to
recent parliamentary inquiries into labour hire, and has appeared at numerous parliamentary
hearings to advocate for vulnerable workers on a range of issues including wage theft and
conditions.

The Australian Manufacturing Workers Union Queensland, ithe Australian Meat Industry
Employees Union Queensland, the Together UnionQueensland, the Transport Workers
Union Queensland, United Voice Queensland, and the Communications, Electrical,
Electronic, Energy, Information, Postal, Plumbing and Allied Services Union of Australia —
Plumbing Division Queensland (“the Unions”); are aii unions that cover workers in
Queensland. Between them they cover workers iritnost areas in Queensland.

Our Submission
Maurice Blackburn and the Unions believe that wage theft should be criminalised.

We see this inquiry as an imporiant part of a wider current focus on exploitative employer
practices and misconduct, of the undermining of employment practices through labour hire
arrangements and shame contracting, the loss of life in workplace accidents, the rampant
exploitation of cohorts of vitinerable workers — such as cleaners — and the emergence of an
almost dystopian sectoi of the economy.

Encouragingly however, the Queensland Government and other legislators have been
providing policy leadership in recent times. We applaud their actions in moving to licence
labour hire, legisiate industrial manslaughter and to encourage a discussion on the the future
of work — as well'as wholesale state-based reviews of workplace health and safety.

Maurice Blackburn believes that in exploring how best to criminalise wage theft, instead of
adjusting ihe existing provisions of the criminal code, a separate legislative scheme should
be implemented to criminalise wage theft, balancing the needs of business and the rights of
workers — a Wage Theft Act.

The potential provisions of a Wage Theft Act include:
e Strict liability offences;
o Tiered levels of conducted amounting to wage theft; and
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

ToR (a) the incidence of wage theft in Queensland, with reference alsgfo gvidence of wage
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
the circumstances through which wage theft is able to occur. We mainly see wage theft in
circumstances where:

e There is a pronounced power or status difference between the worker and the
employer; .

e The company operates within ahighly competitive industry, where the employer feels
that the only option to save cosis is through cutting corners on staff wages and
benefits;

o The workers feel powerless to do anything about it, through fear of losing their jobs or
residential status; and

e There is competition for the jobs on offer.

As a national law firm, we are certainly aware that wage theft is not restricted to Queensland.
We acknowledge that other jurisdictions are exploring ways through which the likelihood and
incidence of wage thefi canbe reduced, or nullified.’

ToR (b) the impactof wage theft on workers, families, law-abiding businesses, the economy
and community

Our experiegnce with clients tells us that the impacts of wage theft extend much deeper than
merely loss of income — although that in itself is a major concern for families struggling with
the day to day cost of living.

Wage theft impacts on the very core of a worker's sense of self.

Many of our clients report the following feelings associated with, or generated through, their
experience of wage theft:

1 http://iwww.abc.net.au/news/2018-05-26/victorian-government-vows-to-crack-down-on-wage-theft/9802072
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Fear.

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
these people fear that speaking out against wage theft will hamper their capacity
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
between unscrupulous employers and vuinerable employe&s,

Shame or embarrassment.

Victims of wage theft often report feeling that they have done something wrong —
that they have somehow put themselves and their families‘in this situation.
Isolation.

Many victims of wage theft feel like they are alone. Many don’t know of the
supports that are available to them, through unicns, censumer advocates or the
various information and complaints authorities.

Anger and frustration.

Negative feelings generated in the workplace are often ventilated in inappropriate
ways, having dreadful consequences on families, peer groups and communities.
Desperation.

Feelings of inadequacy can sometimes lead to tragic consequences.

Maurice Blackburn is also concerned that businesses which engage workers but abrogate
their legal responsibilities for proper pay and cenditions are being given an unfair
commercial advantage over businesses which play by the rules. We recommend that the
Committee give consideration to how ‘the leval playing field’ should be retained.

At the end of this document are a number of case studies compiled by Maurice Blackburn
and our union colleagues. Each speaks to the impacts of wage theft, way beyond the
stresses associated with being in-a puorly paying occupation.

ToR (c) the various forms that wage theft can take, including through unpaid super, the

misuse of ABNs and shant ¢ontracting arrangements

In this submission, Maurice Blackburn details the following forms of wage theft:

Faying under-award wage rates;

Failing to pay superannuation;

Failing to pay for breaks;

Failing to pay overtime;

The compulsory use of employer-provided staff accommodation to claw back wages;
Withhoiding of wages on the basis that it will put visa status at risk;
Not paying for trial or training periods;

Classifying workers as independent contractors;

Deliberate employee misclassification;

Sham contracting arrangements;

Not paying personal, annual or paid leave;

Not paying appropriately for higher duties;
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e Failing to meet basic worker entittlements in family run businesses;

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

This list indicates the scale and extent of wage theft in Queensiand.

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

e Thereis a general custom or industry practice to utilise insecure forms of work;

e The company operates within a highly comipetitive industry, where the employer feels
that the only option to save costs is through cutting corners on staff wages and
benefits;

e The workers feel powerless to do anything about it, through fear of losing their jobs or
residential status; and

e There is competition foi the jobs on offer.

Industries through which services are procured are, by nature, prone to exploiting workers.

Large retailers, producers, manufacturers and even ASX200 corporations are able to
outsource their manual iabour requirements through competitive tender processes. Through
this, they are able to dictale pay rates — by selecting the successful tenderer on the basis of
cost — without having the direct responsibility to the workers for their employment terms and
conditions.

The emergence of this middle party — the employer of the workers ~ has led to a disconnect
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
responsibilities under Fair Work legislation and other legal and regulatory structures.

One approach is that people who work for them become self-employed orindetendent
contractors, and as such avoid having to take responsibility for the praovision cf safety nets
that Australians have come to expect: awards-based wages, superannuatio;y’ and workers’
compensation.

These business operators have managed to move the public discourse away from their
responsibility for providing adequate employee entitlementsto a focus on ‘who employs
whom’.

Many business operators adopt ‘sham contracting’ arrangements between themselves and
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
Education and Employment References Commitiee noted that for many workers engaged in
such arrangements: “There is also no security-of income, no insurance for the worker in case
of accident, no superannuation, no persanal, annual or paid leave of any description.”

These new work arrangements are scmetimes positioned in the context of entrepreneurship,
self-determination and workplace flexibility, but Maurice Blackburn believes that they are
merely another way in which emgloyers are abrogating their responsibilities to their workers.

Many labour hire operators operate outside employment frameworks and routinely exploit
workers. They are effectively invisible to legal and regulatory regimes. While a number of
states are now implementing iabour hire licensing schemes?*, there is still the outstanding
issue of how federal laws intersect with these schemes, while other states continue to be
without a framework at 2il.

Precarious work arid particularly the prevalence of sham contracting, the abuse of labour
hire arrangemerits, freelance/contingency work and gig economy work outside of regulatory
frameworks are increasing year by year.

It is important that industry regulators are appropriately resourced to proactively and
reactively respond to issues arising from these multi-level employment arrangements. This

2 https:/www.fairwork.gov.au/about-us/news-and-media-releases/2016-media-releases/may-2016/20160513-
cleaning-compliance-campaign-presser
Swww.aph.gov.au/Parliamentary_Business/Committees/Senate/Education_and_Employment/AvoidanceofFairWor
k/Report/c08, section 8.2.

4 See, for example, https://www.worksafe.qgld.gov.au/news/2018/regulation-of-the-labour-hire-industry-in-
queensland; https://feconomicdevelopment.vic.gov.au/inquiry-into-the-labour-hire-industry;
https://www.sa.gov.au/topics/business-and-trade/licensing/labour-hire/labour-hire-licence
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

This vulnerability often places them at a distinct status disadvantage inn negotiating
appropriate employment conditions. This is typified by:

¢ Employee non-engagement with unions or forms of weorkforce organisation;

¢ Employees not questioning inappropriate behaviours of employers through fear of
retribution, or not being able to find alternative work; and

¢ Employees not seeking external information on gntitlemets.

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

In our experience, the conditions of their visas are often used against them to claw back
salaries or underpay them. They are led to believe that if they complain about working
arrangements, or if they are paid too much, they will be deported.

In its well-researched submission to a recent Senate inquiry into the future of work,® the
Centre for Multicultural Youth says, in relation to young immigrants:

‘In the future, youiig people are likely to be navigating a much more flexible and
variable workplace, with less support and where there may be increased risks of
exploitation. As such, young people will also need to be equipped with knowledge
about theirrights and responsibilities in the workplace, as well as with supports to
exercise those rights.’

In short, the most marginalised workers are over-represented in poor working arrangements
that leave them vuinerable to wage theft.

Worker exploitation and wage theft is always lowest in workplaces with the highest union
membership. The reasons for this are self-evident:

5 https://www.aph.gov.au/DocumentStore.ashx?id=3cd33a44-816¢-46dc-87ae-5d4709ch98bb&subld=563289.
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e The union is a source of information for workers on their rights, conditions and
entitlements;

e The union will involve workers in bargaining processes with the employer; and

* The union will take action if it finds that workers are being exploited and hold the
employer accountable.

There are, however, several issues associated with industries prone to wage theft which
make connections with unions difficult. These include:

¢ A high turnover or availability of staff;

¢ A highly casualised workforce;

e Antipathy or aggression from some employers about the role of uniois; and

e Fear amongst some cuitural and minority groups of potential negative consequences
of joining a union in the eyes of the employer.

Research has indicated that nearly all international students in Australia are paid less than
the minimum award rate and some are paid below the minimum wage.

Maurice Blackburn and the Unions encourage the Committee to recommend that the
Queensland Government work with and through unions as a primary means of information
distribution to the workforce, for information pertaining to minimum employee entitiements
and recourse available in the event of employer miscenduct.

Throughout this submission, we will focus on four cohorts of workers that are vulnerable to
wage theft. They are:
i.  The gig economy;
i. Transport;
iii.  Franchising arrangements; and
iv.  The public service.

i. The gig economy

The advent of the ‘gig-ecornomy’ and resulting irregular and insecure employment has
drastically changed Queensland and Australia’s industrial relations landscape. Gig-economy
entities have leveraged iew technology and exploited out-of-date legislative frameworks to
circumvent industriai laws and have sought to engage workers as independent contractors in
the delivery of services previously performed by employees.

The most prominent and obvious example of gig-economy work that has sought to evade
conventicinal employment arrangements and which has thereby derived an unfair advantage
are the focd delivery services such as UberEats, Foodora and Deliveroo.

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
contractual arrangements.”

Uber’s “arm’s length” position is hard to reconcile with the fact that it allocates jobs to drivers,
sets the rates charged, dictates and imposes terms of service on both drivers and
passengers and has the power to unilaterally terminate drivers’ services.

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

This is over $4 an hour below Australia’s statutory minimum wage of $18.93 per hour. That's
a loss of $163.78 a week for a driver working 38 hours a week (it is clear that many Uber
drivers work well in excess of that figure to make ends meet).

It is also $6 an hour below thie base rate payable to drivers under the Passenger Vehicle
Transportation Award 2010, and potentially equates to less than half the payments due to
drivers under that Award orice casual loading and penalty rates are taken into account.
Uber points to their “zsurge pricing” as a way that their “driver partners” can make a living
wage.

General Manager for Uber in Australia and New Zealand, David Rohrsheim, was recently
quoted as saying, in response to the above featured income findings, that:

"When surge pricing automatically kicks in ... the fare might be one-and-a-half, two
imes the normal rates. Drivers know this and the smart ones log on at the right
times and the right areas and earn the big bucks."

8 https:/iwww.fairwork.gov.au/about-us/news-and-media-releases/2018-media-releases/june-2018/20180612-

foodora-litigation

7 See for example https://www.nytimes.com/2016/11/27 ftechnology/uber-europe-court-ecj.html

8 hitps://www.futurework.org.au/innovation_or_exploitation_simulating_net_hourly_incomes_of_uberx_drivers
9 http://www.abc.net.au/news/2018-03-06/uber-x-drivers-working-for-haif-the-minimum-wage/9513250
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
increasingly organise their work schedules around peak periods, and as the general
population of drivers increases, then the likelihood that demand for drivers will
exceed supply (hence triggering surge pricing) is further reduced.. supplemental
income from surge pricing is shrinking as a result of the growing suppiy of Uber
drivers — many of whom concentrate their working hours in peak pe: lods in often-
unfulfilled hope of attracting surge price revenue.” '°

Uber has also indicated that its goal is to limit instances of surge pricing - “For us, it’s better
not fo surge. If we don't surge, we can produce more rides.”"

If Uber were required to pay their “partner” drivers, it would actuaily encourage healthy
competition in the market, in which traditional providers such as taxis will not be
disadvantaged by paying its drivers living wages.

Imposing minimum pay requirements on ride share companies is also likely to improve safety
of drivers, as it will reduce the need for drivers to weork extended hours in order to make a
living wage.

iii. Franchising

One of the most common industries in which wage theft occurs in Australia is the franchising
industry. Confidence in franchises is at an ail-time low, following repeated scandals of wage
theft and unsound business practices and relationships. Ongoing, public cases such as 7-
Eleven, Caltex, Domino’s and Retaii Food Group show the need for reform in the sector, to
ensure that workers aren’t exploited and compliant franchises can operate with integrity.

The franchise industry employs cver 775,000 people.'? The $180 billion sector is currently
the subject of a federal senate inquiry and the focus of the Australian Competition and
Consumer Commission ("ACCC”), following 600 franchising related complaints made last

The franchising modelhas been described as a ‘honey trap’, luring inexperienced
franchisees with prospects of business success.'® When franchisees suffer as a result of
these relationships, so do workers engaged by the franchisees. It is not uncommon for a
franchise reiaticnship to be so restricted that the only way a franchisee can make a profit is
through tihe undercutting of their wages bill.

'° Subsidising Billionaires: Simulating the Net Incomes of UberX Drivers in Australia by Jim Stanford,
Ph.D. Centre for Future Work at the Australia Institute. March 2018

" https:/iwww.nytimes.com/interactive/2017/04/02/technology/uber-drivers-psychological-tricks.html?_r=0

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
behaviour'*

This goes some way to explaining why the scandals are so wide spread, as it stems from the
deliberate business model of franchisors, which hang franchisees and workers' out to'dry.

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

“It is not the scheme of the Award to attacii a salary to a particular set of duties, nor
to attach a salary to a public service employees’ principal function. It is not a grant of
authority to the Commission to retrospectively arbitrate a "fair” or “reasonable” wage
for a particular public service employee in an action fo recover outstanding
wages.”"®
While the decision was specific to the wording contained in the relevant award, while the
Award changed the wording used from “office” to “role”, it is unclear whether the precedent of
the Langley matter would applv today. A-iegislative amendment to ensure there is no
ambiguity is required, a possiblesclution is to examine the provisions of the Western
Australia public sector legislation which make appointment decisions in respect of
classification levels for the empicyee subject to industrial awards.

The result is that Queengland public servants may still be barred from making underpayment
claims, even where it has been recognised by their department’s Chief Executive that they
were performing duties attracting a higher rate of pay. This leaves public servants in a
demonstrably worse position that employees in the private sector, and needs to change.

ToR () the effectiveness of the current regulatory framework at state and federal level in
dealing witiy wage theft and supporting affected workers

Refer to our response to ToR (g)

4 https://iwww.smh.com.aufinteractive/2015/7-eleven-revealed/
18 Minister for Industrial Relations AND Perry Keith Langley (C/2009/46)
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ToR {g) options for ensuring wage theft is eradicated, including consideration of requlatory
and other measures either implemented or proposed in other jurisdictions interstate,
nationally or internationally and the role of industrial organisations, including unions and
emplovyer registered bodies in addressing and preventing wage theft.

Maurice Blackburn is of the opinion that wage theft should be criminalised.

Theft by an employee is a separate offence in the Criminal Code Act 1899 (Qld) (“Criminal
Code”) and garners a more serious penalty than stealing generally. However there is rio
equivalent for theft by an employer. Theft by an employer, as described eariier, takes
advantage of the trust or vulnerability of an employee.

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
appropriate vehicle to criminalise wage theft. Belowwe provide our view on why neither the
‘stealing’ nor ‘fraud’ provisions of the Queensland Crimir:al Code would be an appropriate
mechanism for criminalising wage theft.

i Stealing

The Criminal Code criminalises theft. Section 391 of the Criminal Code defines stealing.

Section 398 of the Criminal Code sets out the punishment for stealing, and, “special
circumstances” that are aggravated types of stealing. Section 398 subsection 6 sets out
the particular offence of stealing by clerks and servants:

If the offender is a clerk o servant, and the thing stolen is the property of the
offender’s employer, or came into the possession of the offender on account of the
offender’s employer, the offender is liable to imprisonment for 10 years."®

The Criminal Code defines a servant as follows:

“...any person employed for any purpose as or in the capacity of a clerk or
servant.. "

As stated earlier, the stealing provisions of the Criminal Code anticipates and criminalises
theft by an employee, however, does not apply to an employer.

8 Criminal Code Act 1899 (Qld) s 6.
17 |bid, Part 1 Definitions.
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One reason why wage theft by an employer is not anticipated in the stealing provisions of
the Criminal Code is as to steal one must ‘take’ or ‘convert’ anything capable of being
stolen.™®

Stealing is not the appropriate provision to criminalise wage theft, as the stealing
provision in the Criminal Code is designed to criminalise the taking of a thing, nhot the
withholding of a thing, such as a failure to pay wages.

ii. Fraud

Within the Criminal Code, fraud may be a more appropriate mecharism to criminalise
wage theft. Section 408C of the Criminal Code sets out the following'®:

A person who dishonestly:

e Gains a benefit, pecuniary or otherwise, to any person;? or
e Causes a detriment, pecuniary or otherwise, to any person.?’

While the fraud provisions of the Criminal Code couid be amended to criminalise wage
theft, two issues exist:

e Proving intent to engage in wage theft, which would mean that employers who are
ignorant of their obligations and fail to pay could not be prosecuted successfully;

e The burden of proof, beyond reasonable doubt, coupled with intent makes the bar
too high.

In light of the above, Maurice Blackburn and the Unions believe that the current Criminal
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
development of a Wage Theft Act. Our summary of its potential provisions appears below:

A Wage Theft Act would set cut’the following:

e Strict liability effences;
e Tiered levels of conducted amounting to wage theft;
o Tiered leveis of penalty.

A Wage Theft Act would have parallels with the Workplace Health and Safety Act (Qld) 2011
(“WHS Act”)in terms of offences and penalties. For example, categories could take a form as
follows:

18 |bid s 391(1).
19 Similar to the Stealing provisions, fraud contemplates if the offender is an employee of another person. If the

victim is the employer, then the employee will be liable to 12 years imprisonment at 408C (1) (e)

20 Criminal Code Act 1899 (Qld) s 408C(1)(d).
21 |pid s 408C(1)(e).
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

A pecuniary penalty of up to $1,000,000 and/or 10 years imprisoinment would be
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
comply with relevant industrial instruments, supeiannuation laws in a systemic
failure to pay wages.

An appropriate pecuniary penalty for this offence would be $300,000.
Category 3 — individual failure to comgly and pay wages (lowest category)

The category three offence criminalises an employer or engager’s failure to pay
wages without a reasonable excuse. This simple offence is applicable to
employers and engagers who are unstre of their obligations and fail to pay wages
as a result of their ignorance.

An appropriate pecuniary enalty for this offence would be $100,000.

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

ln *ormo /\‘F nraeantt l'l-ln 3 I\F r\-FFannao Hﬂa nlnfnnnn winn nlrl hnnr tha liwrdAan Af mrAanf A nraAvis faa
rl Al R WU i i rJl LAV B A ] Vlvv\‘ Sl v3

conduct was engaged in with a reasonable excuse.

Industrial organisaticns already provide assistance to their members when it comes to
recovering wagas. Industrial organisations should be given standing to prosecute wage theft,
and to be able to seek costs from an employer on a successful prosecution.

Prosecution via the creation of new provisions within the criminal code is only one potential

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
2009 (Cth) (FW Act)?.

On these occasions, the Commission has concluded that the woikers were not employees,
within the meaning of section 386(1)(a) of the FW Act. Thic-conclusion has not been upheld
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

There is the possibility that even if the Fair YWork Ombudsman or any subsequent applicant

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
condlitions for ‘gig-economy’ workers.

Due to the referral of the State’s powers to make law in respect of industrial relations for the
private sector to the Comimaonwealth, the State Government cannot itself legislate the
employment status of these workers.

Accordingly, to address the circumstances where ‘gig-economy’ food delivery services
structure the arrangements by which they engage workers to circumvent an employment
relationship, Maurice Blackburn and the Unions submit that the Queensland Government
should seek ta grant the Queensiand Industrial Relations Commission (QIRC) powers to
make determiinations with respect to certain ‘contracts for carriage’ which apply to these
entities, akin to powers currently held by the New South Wales Industrial Relations
Comrigsion (NSWIRC).

Maurice Blackburn and the Unions would be pleased to provide additional information about
the powers of the NSWIRC upon request.

22 https:/iwww.afr.com/news/policy/industrial-relations/uber-wins-fair-work-commission-case-over-drivers-
employment-rights-20180105-h0Oduqq
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
legislation to this effect is expressly exempted from the operation of the ICA. Specifically
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

e Insert a new section 91W(2) into The Transport Operations (Passenger Transport)
Act (1994) (the Act) which requires that all applications for the grant or renewal of a
booking entity authorisation be submitted witi calculations demonstrating that, on its
lowest rate of pay (ie, excluding surge pricirng from calculations), after all petrol,
insurance, operating and capital costs, net GST payments, income tax obligations
and superannuation contributions are taken into account, drivers will receive at least
the minimum they would be entitled to under the Passenger Vehicle Transportation
Award 2010 (including casual loading and penalty rates), or in the alternative, the
minimum they would be entitled to under the minimum wage, including casual
loading and all other entitlemsnts;

¢ Insert new section 91W(3} into the Act which requires that the Chief Executive reject
any applications for the grant or renewal of a booking entity authorisation when not
satisfied that the applicant's driver pay rates are sufficient to meet the minimum they
would be entitled to under the Passenger Vehicle Transportation Award 2010
(including casualioading and penalty rates), or in the alternative, the minimum they
would be entitled to uinder the minimum wage, including casual loading and all other
entitlements;

e Insert new 81Y(2) into the Act mandating that all booking entity authorisations are
subject te the condition that the holder provide records on a yearly basis confirming
that drivers are paid at least the minimum they would be entitled to under the
Passenger Vehicle Transportation Award 2010 (including casual loading and penalty
rates), or in the alternative, the minimum they would be entitled to under the
mirimum wage, including casual loading and all other entitlements;

o Insert new 91Y(3) allowing the chief executive to impose more regular driver

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

e Insert new 91ZC into the Act allowing the chief executive to refuse the issuing of a
booking entity authorisation for up to three years in circumstances where the entity
has a repeat history of underpaying drivers; and

e Insert new 91ZD into the Act mandating the imposition of sigriificant fines for every
day that an entity operates as a booking entity without the necessary booking entity
authorisation. This provision is suggested in light of 'Jber’s past history in
Queensland of operating unlawfully. Fines would fieed to be significant to provide
Uber and other organisations the necessary mativation to obtain the booking entity
authorisation.

ii. Franchise arrangements.

Currently there are two instruments aimed at reguiating the franchising industry, namely
Australian Consumer Law (“ACL”) and the Franchising Code of Conduct (“the Code”) under
the Competition and Consumer Act 2010 {Cth). The ACL has jurisdiction to deal with unfair
terms in franchise agreements and any misleading, deceptive or unconscionable conduct
against franchisees. However, as with other types of litigation, it is often not entered into
because of the costly and lengthy nature.

The Code regulates the conduct of franchising participants towards each other, usually
through franchise agreemerits; The ACCC regulates the Code and investigates alleged
breaches.

Maurice Blackburn has previously argued:?®

e That a positive obligation should be placed on the franchisor to ensure its franchisees
are upholding the legislative requirements of workplace law. This positive obligation
should be articulated in the Code of Conduct; and

e That a Funder of Last Resort process should be embedded and mandated in the
Cogde of Conduct.

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
license to operate in a jurisdiction.?

As outsourcing and growth business models, both the labour hire and franchising industries
contemplate similar industrial issues and arrangements.

Therefore, Maurice Blackburn and the Unions submit that a licensing scherne for franchises
could be a reasonable policy consideration.

Similar to Queensland’s Labour Hire Licensing Act (Qld) 2017, a franchising iicensing
scheme could have the following features:

¢ Require a franchisor to hold a license to operate in Queensland, issued by a licensing
body;

¢ Require a franchisor to pay for that license by way of annual fee, in line with the size
of the business;

e Be based on a fit and proper person’ test to ensuré operators have a history of
compliance; and

¢ A contravention of the scheme incurs civil penalties.

The proposed licensing body would be funded via the licensing fees from franchisors and be
responsible for license registration, including iermination, prosecuting contraventions and
enforcing license conditions. The unit would aiso:

o Establish a register of franchiscrs in Queensland in the interests of transparency;

e Manage an online resource for frarnchisees and workers to visit, which lists
franchisors and their businesses;

e Conduct investigations, inciuding entry powers, into allegations of noncompliance
with license requirements and share information with relevant bodies such as the
Fair Work Ombudsmari‘or Fair Work Commission;

o Make determinaticris on contraventions, and

e Report annually o compliance, including data on the number of investigations
conducted and thie inumber of fines and penalties issued

The requirements of a license to be considered by the unit could include:

e A ‘minimur capital’ requirement of assets, revenue and cash flow;

o Theidentity of persons who, or ought to be, granted the license under the scheme;

e “The business record of the franchisor;

e Whether any individuals have been in breach under the scheme or any other
industrial law;

o Whether the license applicant is of good character and judgement; and

e Any other relevant matters.

24 [ abour Hire Licensing Bill 2017 (Qld).
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Franchisors should be required to report on the following:

e Compliance with industrial laws, including work, health and safety laws;

e The number of franchisees engaged by them;

¢ The number of employees engaged by their franchisees;

¢ Information of payment to superannuation funds and Workcover premiums;
¢ Relevant franchise agreements which govern franchisees;

¢ Relevant industrial agreements which govern employees of franchisees; and
e ATO documents.

It is important to ensure that in the design of a Franchising Regulation Scheime that the onus
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
to perform work at the Hans Primo Wacoi plant, cleaning the facility after each day of
production. These workers mostly worked through the night.

An investigation by the relevant union, the AMIEU, found that workers:

o Were paid a flat rate of $18 per hour,;

e Worked predominately employed at night between the hours of 10pm to 6am;

o Were paid approximately $9 per hour under award rates;

¢ Were not paicl 2ny superannuation;

e Were not provided pay slips;

e Were'teld triey were working as a contractor but did not even have to provide an ABN
number;

o Paymentiwas made into their accounts with no reference to who deposited the funds;

e /Nodocumentation exists at all between the employee and the employer, only phone
niumbers;

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

¢ No overtime rates and no shift allowances;

e Payslips that clearly showed under award rates;

o Best link and Bayer were the labour hire providers hut sub-contractors to BE poultry -
employees moved between Bayer and Best Link after six months but stayed at the
same worksite (avoiding the six month rule);

e Threats were made to Korean workers. A /fabour hire supervisor parked outside of the
AMIEU office to watch who was attending meetings;

e The Branch Secretary wrote to Hans Frima's National HR manager,

e The Branch Secretary and Industriai Officer flew to Sydney to meet with the
company; and

e Following negotiations a six figure back pay was reached.

3. Employment arrangements for short-stay temporary visa workers

Short stay visa workers, especialiy those on ‘backpacker visas’ are employed in large
numbers in the meat processirig industry.

In almost all cases, the direct employer is an on-hire labour company which supplies labour
to a meat processing estakiishment. Such arrangements allow ‘backpacker visa’ workers to
be employed at award rates, rather than the higher enterprise agreement rates which apply
to direct employees of the establishment. Despite the advantage which accrues to
employers in engaging visa workers on inferior award rates, non-compliance with even
minimum safety net entitiements is rampant.

The ANMiEU's practical experience is that it is commonplace for these arrangements to
involve:

¢ Underpayment of basic award conditions, often due to blatant disregard of award
entitlements; ,

o Attempts by the union to ensure award compliance are hindered by inadequate
record keeping by the employers and intimidation of visa workers;
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Many of the labour hire companies operating in this sector are “$2 companies” with
no significant assets or capital, allowing them to go into liquidation if attempts to
enforce entitlements are successful;

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
industry employers, the invariable reaction has been a refusal to investigate or take
remedial action. Employers invariably (and often, implausibly) purport to have no
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
site. We estimate there are approximately 200 produiction workers (plus admin, maintenance,
management etc.) There were three Taiwanese workers who have made a formal complaint
with the FWO. The AMIEU have assisted them i raaking that application.

The evidence gathered from meeting and speaking with the workers showed:

5.

Use of an ABN in a situation whéere woirkers are employees and not genuine
contractors;

Underpayment of minimum awara wages;

Unpaid overtime;

Flat rates of pay;

No taxation amounts deducted by the employer,;

The first two days worked for no pay as to “assess ability” to perform job;

Employees are not provided with pay slips;

No superannuzaiion gaid;

Obligated to provide a $600 bond for a job. The $600 would be refunded only if the
employee stayed in employment for 8 months. Each employee would have $100 a
week deducted from their wage until the bond was reached;

Forced inte renting from certain housing. Up to 15 people can live in one home.
$90/pw to share a room. $70/pw to share a lounge room. Some were forced to sleep
on the floor (property searches show that the Plant Manager had an interest in five of
tha seven properties used to house Taiwanese workers); and

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

e Have an office in Taipei Taiwan where each week dozens of Taiwanese warkers are
interviewed for work in Australia;

e Paying award rates but freezing at entry level rates. This is a training wage and little
training is needed to perform meat packing duties;

o Incorrect classification rates;

¢ Requiring workers to pay for Q fever vaccinations before commencement of
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

e On call workers — they are told they have to waii for work each day to get the call. If
they do this for a period of time they then will be provided a more secure structure of
casual work;

e Advertising for boys only;

e Asking height and weight when applying for a job;

¢ One of the directors was involved with underpayments of other employees with
another company; and

o Threats of legal action to one former emplioyee for informing workers of their rights on
a social media website.

6. Uber

With Uber a system of ratings is used for customer feedback. When our client’s ratings fell
below a certain standard due io inexplicable reasons, his account with Uber was deactivated.

There being no place or tribunal to agitate the driver’s grievances, an unfair dismissal was
lodged. Soon, the driver found himself opposed by high priced lawyers acting for Uber. To be
successful, the driver'was going to have to prove that he was an employee, not an
independent contractor.

In the end, some unfavourable decisions on the point from other jurisdictions and the huge
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

However, the respondent was permitted to use lawyers to have the default jdgement set
aside. QCAT then subsequently dismissed the claim as not being “liquidated”.

The contractor, sceptical of QCAT after this experience, engaged his own lawyers to pursue
the matter in the Magistrates’ Court. ‘

The TWU has assisted many owner/drivers and other independent contractors with
recovering debts owing to them. This assistance generally consists of drawing small
claims/minor civil disputes for filing with QCAT. QCAT howsgver has a culture regarding legal
representation that in the union’s experience rarely sees a party refused legal representation.

This places owner/drivers and independent coniractors at a distinct disadvantage in
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
shift for continuous shift warkers at the Gold Coast Hospital and Health Service (‘the
GCHHS’) should include a-paid half hour meal break, and a 9.5hr shift worked by a
Department of Transpart & Main Roads ('DTMR’) shift worker should include a half hour
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
corresponded with the employer. The union received correspondence in late 2015-admitting
the conduct was not compliant with the industrial instrument and proposing an arrangement
to pay the affected employees a settiement based on them receiving a payment of 3¢ mins of
ordinary time for each shift. We responded that the settlement should be based on payment
at the overtime rates, per the industrial agreement.

Together had to notify of a dispute under the Industrial Relations Act 1898, at/which point
Queensland Health, representing the GCHHS, denied liability.

Contrast the behaviour of TMR, where they identified the error ‘as part of some internal
review and arranged a meeting with the union to inform themof the issue. They then entered
into discussions of how to manage the issue, such as makiing arrangements to calculate
back pay to be paid and informing staff on the issues and actions to be taken. This involved
making an immediate change to the work pattern so the issue would not continue into the
future and senior management sent out communications to-all affected staff identifying the
error, apologising to staff and indicating how paymerits to rectify the error were going to be
processed.

At no time did TMR try and deny the error or zigue there was no liability, they acted as a
model litigant and showed genuine leadership cn a sensitive issue.

It was only that the same type of situaticn arcse in DTMR and the union were able to advise
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
Payment was not effected until 2016.

By not trying to deny the issue like GCHHS did in 2012 and Queensland Health did in 2016,
TMR acted to prevent a praciice generating future costs to the state. -

10. Regional shopping centre

In February 2016, United Voice Queensland (UVQ) were contacted by members employed
as cleaners at a large regional shopping centre. The cleaners had performed cleaning duties
at the centre for various employers over a few years. A cleaning contractor "SSS" held the
contract bui-had regularly sub contracted other companies to engage the labour under a
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

Employees were asked to complete new "PAYE" forms, which did not irciude details of the
new employer. Employees were not provided with any details of the new employer other than
a mobile phone contact number and a contact's first name.

Employees were threatened that if they contacted the union they weuld be sacked. It
transpired that employees remained working at the shopping centre, performing identical
duties.

Employees were not provided with payslips and received reduced remuneration for the same
hours of work, deposited into their bank accounts. No dietait of the payer was made available
to employees.

One of the employees called "JS's" contact numbet ‘and enquired about her payslip. "JS’s”
contact stated that none of the employees were empicyed by "JS" yet, because they hadn't
provided "JS" with an ABN.

Another employee was absent through illness, provided a medical certificate as per usual
practice to "SSS' and did not receive any sick pay.

[t became clear, that "SSS" had intended te pyramid sub contract out the employees to "JS"
who would employ all the cleaners under sham independent contracts under "ABNs" at
reduced pay, performing exactly the samie duties.

The union wrote to the shopping cenire management and "SSS" setting out, inter alia, our
concerns about potential breaches of the federal employment laws.

The union received a response from "SSS" advising that it no longer intended to engage "JS"
to employ the cleaners, and that "SSS" intended to engage them all under the award.

Our members subsequently began receiving payslips from "SSS”, but discovered that they
were engaged as ‘casuals', despite working the same regular rosters. After further
intervention from the union, employees were re-classified as permanent part time.

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
contracting companies, employed the cleaners directly and financially compensated them.

One of the cleaners affected, United Voice member Hiren Patel stated:

“United Voice worked very hard to ensure that our underpayments were rectified.

A union organiser visited our site several times throughout the process aiid showed us how
to understand our Award so we can recognise any underpayments if it ever happens again.
I recommend to all cleaners that they contact United Voice if they have any-concems about
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

“Quad and United Voice have been in dispute about empicyvees who had claims of
underpayment. The union had been contacted by its members but had been unable to
resolve the matter with Quad. United Voice took the dispute to the Fair Work Commission.

Quad agreed to investigate the claims of United Voice and found that improper practices had
occurred involving two sub-contractors who supplied labour to the two contracts in question.

The sub-contractors had engaged in various practices including underpayments and award
breaches none of which were consistent with the commitments Quad has given to
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
f'hr\ *hnu nnrxr\’n nf AlAany

Py SV wlr i thn Al -
G CiearieiS Wns WOIrR il inie uluuou_y

United Voice accepts that Quad is genuine in seeking to change and improve its relationship
with the union in Queensland.

i

Quad and United Voice agree that both parties will commit to a professional working
relationship thai-among other things will enable the union to visit work sites and talk to
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
allowed the employer to roster workers anywhere between 10 and 37.5 hours peiweek.-‘Workers
who would regularly expect to be rostered, for example, 30 hours per week with Jupiters saw their
hours reduced sharply to the minimum required in the employment contract. This understandably
had a severely detrimental impact on these workers.

The rationale of Challenger was clear. Their plan was to starve out transferring workers, who
retained the higher benefits contained in the EA in favour of new, cheaper’'workers, who could be
covered by the Award.

Notwithstanding Challenger's dubious motives, this activity was’a fareseeable consequence of the
outsourcing arrangement.

However, as Challenger's operations ramped up, United Voice began hearing reports of more
dubious employment arrangements. Particularly, United Voice members began reporting the use of
foreign labour, usually international students, who respended to job offers posted on "Gumtree" and
other like services. These workers were ordinarily paid flat rates of pay and on a cash-in-hand basis.

Following lengthy and extensive investigations, (/nited Voice commenced Federal Court proceedings
against Challenger. However, upon these proceedings reaching court, United Voice was made aware
that Challenger (who by this time had established several different corporate entities) had gone into .
liquidation.

At a similar time, following adverse publicity and campaigning by United Voice, Jupiters made the
decision to bring housekeeping, faciiity cleaning and stewarding services back 'in house’.

13. Case Study: Inspection of wages record

A United Voice official visiting a Club and talking with employees began to form suspicions
about the payment practices of the catering sub-contractor operating within the club.

The union had quite a few members employed by the club, but only a handful of members
who were employed by the sub-contractor.

Most employees f the sub-contractor had been discouraged from talking with union officials
and were refuctant to do so.

Throughout visits between March and July 2017, an organiser was informed by various
employess that the caterer was underpaying its staff, paying cash in hand and kept two sets
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

A decision and Order to inspect hon-member records did not issue until 5 October.
On 27 October, the catering contractor applied to re-open the matter due to having not been
heard before the order was issued. On 6 November, the union provided the caterer's

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

Two cleaners, Fiona Quemuel and her partner, Brian Teieman, both work side by side performing
identical work, however, Brian was paid the award rate and Fiona was paid below the award due to
the continuing operation of an expired ‘Workchoices’ agreement.

Both work at Peninsula Fair Shopping centre ai'Kippa-Ring on the north side of Brisbane.

Both wear the same uniform that ¢f the principal contractor, have the same supervisor, have the
same tasks to perform but both did nhot have the same employer.

Brian is directly employed by Trideit Cleaning who has the contract to clean and provide security
services for Peninsula Fair shogping centre, but Fiona was indirectly employed by Trident through a
labour hire arrangement with a’labour hire company trading as Workplace Central.

Fiona was on a flat rate of pay and paid the same flat hourly rate regardless of the day of the week,
or the time of the dayornight which she works. Fiona’s hourly rate was simply the award minimum

base rate.

Brian is paid underthe terms and conditions of the Cleaning Services Award 2010 so he receives
penalty rates at night, on the weekend and on Public Holidays.

Fiona was not paid any penalties or allowances.
Fiona stated to UVQ:

“l expressed an interest in cleaning work at the Peninsula Fair Shopping Centre, as my
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

I rang Trident as no one had mentioned anything to me about working for a different company and |
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

| spoke with a United Voice organiser who visited the site. The-organiser explained to me that | was
actually employed by another company related to Workplace Ceriirai, which had an expired
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

| think it is unfair that some of us at the shopping cenitre who wear Trident uniforms and work
alongside cleaners directly employed by Trident dre not paid penalty rates or allowances, when we
perform the exact same tasks every day.”

United Voice Queensland officials, have negotiated for Fiona to be directly employed by Trident, and
she will now be paid under the award, and receive penalties and allowances, like her husband Brian.

uvQ subsequently negotiated directly with Workplace Central who agreed to terminate their
“Workchoices” agreement frori’d January 2018.

15. Case Study: Wyiinum Plaza shopping security guards
Bruce Lillvwhite, Tim Balstad and Leanne Mackay

Bruce Lillywhite, Tim Boistad and Leanne Mackay also worked for Trident under an indirect labour
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
their agreement expired in 2011, it provided pay rates above the Workplace Central CA but below
the award.

Trident security agreed with United Voice to terminate their own zombie agreement-and pay its
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

Arising from those discussions, Mr Malley discovered ernplovees working in the
housekeeping department had been outsourced to a labour hire company trading as Style
Hospitality.

The outsourced workers were represented as independent contractors and paid under an
ABN; however, the indicia of their work arrangements suggested that they were more likely
to be employees and not independent contractors.

Some employees of Style Hospitality were engaged as employees and others were
represented as being independent contractors. Both groups of workers performed the same
duties.

United Voice discovered the outsourced enployees were paid on a ‘per room basis’ and
those deductions were made for tiniforms, cleaning chemicals and equipment supplied by
Style Hospitality. Cleaning chemiicais and equipment were charged at rate of 5.2% of their
pay per fortnight.

United Voice also discovered that'deductions were made for Public Liability and Accident
insurance cover at a rate/of $49.55 per fortnight.

These deductions seemed cxcessive relative to the outsourced employees’ modest earnings,
and the value received by employees for their outlay.

United Voice considered that it was unlikely the ‘per room rate’ would provide sufficient
compensatiori ielative to the minimum wage rates and other entittements payable under the
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

The union provided a brief report to the Commonwealth Employment Ombudsman, the
Australian Tax Office and the Stamford Hotel.

This situation was unusual in that the Hotel and the Contractor co-op&arated with the union
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

3. That to this end the inquiry consider the deveicpment of a Wage Theft Act.

4. That the potential provisions of a Waga Theft Act include:
e Strict liability offences;
o Tiered levels of conducted amounting to wage theft; and
e Tiered levels of penalty.

5. That the prosecution bear the burden of proof to prove that the conduct was engaged
in without a reasonable excuse.

6. That industrial organisations should be given standing to prosecute wage theft, and to
be able to seek costs from an employer on a successful prosecution.

7. The Queensland Gevernment grant the Queensland Industrial Relations Commission
(QIRC) powers tc make determinations as to the status of workers in ride sharing
arrangementg, with respect to certain ‘contracts for carriage’, akin to powers currently
held by the New South Wales Industrial Relations Commission (NSWIRC).

8. The Transpoit Operations (Passenger Transport) Act (1994) be amended to better
regulate Uber and other ride sharing providers, to ensure these services do not allow
for wage theft.

9./ ‘That the inquiry investigate state and federal options for ensuring that workers
performing work for ‘gig-economy’ food delivery services such as UberEats, Foodora
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

Page 32

RTI Document No. 297 of 322



Megan Lederhose

From: ‘ Evan Moorhead

Sent: Friday, 7 September 2018 4:11 PM

To: Danielle Cohen; Ali King

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

A 1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
Government

CTPI - Personal Information

From: Ben Hubbard |
Sent: Friday, 7 September 2018 11:12 AM

To: Evan Moorhead <Evan.Moorhead @ministerial.qld.gov.au>; dames Sullivan
<James.Sullivan@ministerial.qld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Maurice Blackburn submission to the Qld Termination of Pregnancy Bill 2018

Evan, Jimmy

| wanted to get this on to your radar. This sub'mission iras gone to the Health Communities etc C'tee of the Parliament
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
Sent: Wednesday, 5 Septemizer 2018 12:34 PM

CTPI - Personal Information

To: Ben Hubbard €'~ Persenaiiniormation Liberty Sanger

Cc: Jennifer Kanis [CTP! “Fersonel Information Sarah Atkinson CTP! - Personal nformation

Paloma Cole CTP!- Personal Information 'Michelle erght CTPI - Personal Information Jade
Thompsgn 4CTF!- Personal Information Giri Sivaraman CTP! - Personal Information

JOSh Bornstein CTPI - Personal Information Peter Newllng CTPI - Personal Information

Christine Concha CTPI - Personal Information
Subject: Maurice Blackburn submission to the Qld Termination of Pregnancy Bill 2018

Dear all,

Please find attached a copy of our submission made today to the Queensland Termination of Pregnancy Bill 2018.
This has been drafted as a joint initiative between the Queensland Women'’s Network members Sarah Atkinson and
Paloma Cole, and SJP (with thanks to Peter Newling).
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As you may be aware, the Palaszszuk government recently introduced a Bill to decriminalise abortion and introduce
safe access zones around termination facilities (within which certain conduct by anti-abortion protestors is prohibited
within a radius of 150 m).

We made a deliberate decision to limit the scope of our submission to the Bill's safe access zone provisions. Given
our previous history acting on behalf of the Fertility Control Clinic in Melbourne and involvement in pushing for
legislative change in Victoria (and other states re similar legislation) we felt this was where we could best value add.

In a nutshell, the position we take in the submission is —

* We commend the Qld government for introducing law reforms targeted to ensure patients can access health
care and termination services safely;

+ Safe access zones are important not only for patients — but also staff of health care/facilities. This is a
workplace safety issue;

» Although we welcome the inclusion of safe access zones in the draft legislatiorn, we are concerned that the
Bili as currently drafted will not adequately prevent conduct likely to cause harm.

There has been a fairly tight turn-around for this submission. The Committee will be conducting publlc hearings next
week — we are hoping to be invited.

Happy to answer any questions or concerns you may have — please don't hasitate to get in touch.
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
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the ernivironment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended salely-for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is striclly protiibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: hitp:/Avww. mauriceblackburn.com au/privacy-
policy.aspx

From: Katie Robertson

Cawmda \Alnduimnndas, mnd
it VV\.UII\.OUGY' o I LTS

To: 'health@parliament.qld.gov.au' <hea!th@parllament gld.gov.au>

Cc: Sarah AtkinsonCTP! - Rersonal iniermiaiion Paloma Cole
New'ing CTPI - Personal Informaticn

)

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

Thank you for the opportunity to contribute to the Health, Communities, Disability Services and Domestic and Family
Violence Prevention Committee’s consideration of the Termination of Pregnancy Bill 2018.

Please find our submission attached.

We are keen to offer our experience and expertise as legal professionals to the Committee. We would welcome the
opportunity to meet with the Committee and elaborate on our insights.
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

Matrrice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international 1SO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you &re not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply’email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: hitp:/iwww.mauriceblackburn.com. au/privacy-
policy.aspx
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IMaurice Blackburn Pty Limited
AEN 21 105657 948

i.evel 21

5 September 2018 380 Latrobe Strest
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

Thank you for the opportunity to contribute 1o the iHealth, Communities, Disability Services
and Domestic and Family Violence Preveniion Committee’s consideration of the Termination
of Pregnancy Bill 2018.

As you will know, Maurice Blackburn Pty Ltd is a plaintiff law firm with 31 permanent offices
and 29 visiting offices throughout all mainland States and Territories. The firm specialises in
personal injuries, medical neglizence, employment and industrial law, dust diseases,
superannuation (particularly total and permanent disability claims), negligent financial and
other advice, and consumer and commercial class actions. The firm also has a substantial
Social Justice Practice.

Maurice Blackburn emglays over 1000 staff, including approximately 330 lawyers who
provide advice and assistarice to thousands of clients each year. The advice services are
often provided free of charge as it is firm policy in many areas to give the first consultation for
free.

Relevantly, ourSocial Justice Practice has been instrumental in arguing for the
establishmeit of safe access zones around termination services in other Australian
jurisdictions. We have direct experience acting for the Victorian Fertility Control Clinic (FCC)
in cotirt proceedings that were a catalyst for crucial legislative change in Victoria. We have
withessed first-hand the significant difference safe access zones have made to the lives of
patients and healthcare professionals.

We note that, in introducing the Bill, Attorney-General and Minister for Justice, Hon. Yvette
D’Ath said: “The Palaszczuk government is committed to informed, effective, evidence based
policy along with a consultative approach to inform policy development”.’

1 Qid Parliament Hansard, 22 Aug 2018, p.1962
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
conduct without the additional need to establish the impact of that conduct on the victim, in
line with other safe access zone legislation across Australia, such as Victoria.

In the following paragraphs, we outline the information which we hope will be instructive for
the Committee, in the following format:

i The importance of safe access zones;

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

iv. Safe access zones as essential to'2nsuring workplace safety;

V. Concern regarding Part 4's requirement that prohibited conduct be
‘reasonably likely to deter’;

vi. Reflections on Part 4 of the ¢raft legislation and recommended amendments;

3

Vii. The importance of adopiirig gender neutral language.

We offer 10 recommendations for amendments to the Bill for consideration by the
Committee.

We are keen to offer ourlexperience and expertise as legal professionals to the Committee.
We would welcome the oppoitunity to meet with the Committee and elaborate on our
insights, and those of our former client, Dr Susie Allanson.

i. The’importance of safe access zones

The Queensiand Law Reform Commission’s (QLRC) review of termination of pregnancy
laws? found that:

“There is evidence that people who oppose termination of pregnancy sometimes
enhgage in activities including protesting, holding prayer vigils, or providing ‘footpath
counselling’ at or near premises at which a service of performing terminations on
women is provided, and that such behaviour may impact on the safety, privacy and
well-being of women who are accessing those premises and of service providers’.
(para 5.1)

2 https:/iwww.girc.qld.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0004/576166/qlrc-report-76-2018-final.pdf p.155
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The QLRC report goes on to fund that:

“.....the purpose of safe access zone provisions is to protect the safety and
wellbeing and respect the privacy and dignity of persons accessing services
provided at termination services premises and employees and others who need o
access those premises in the course of their duties and responsibilities’. (para
5.128)*

The report, in para. 5.122 concludes that “(f)he draft legislation should include safe access
zone provisions”.

Similar conclusions have been drawn when like legislation has been introduced in other
jurisdictions. With various wordings, the legislation in the Northern Territory,'New South
Wales, Tasmania and Victoria all contain similar provisions.

In NSW, the process for embedding safe access zones in the legislation was politically
characterised by bi-partisanship. The Bill was co-sponsored by the Australian Labor Party
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

“Staff who work at places where abortions are performed also have the right to enter
and leave their workplace safely, without being obstructed, interfered with, hindered
or harassed”.’

Maurice Blackburn has long recognised the importance of safe access zones — not just for
those accessing services, but as a workplace safety issue.®

ii. Learnings from our experience in arguing for safe access zones in
other jurisdictions, in particular Victoria

Maurice Blackburn was instrumental in advocating for the establishment of safe access
zones around termination services'in Victoria and has witnessed the significant and positive
difference this has made for patiznts and healthcare providers.

In 2015 Maurice Blackbuin, together with the Human Rights Law Centre (HRLC)
commenced legal proceedings in the Supreme Court of Victoria on behaif of the FCC against
the Melbourne City Council (MCC), seeking orders compelling the MCC to stop the ongoing
harassment and iniimidation of staff and patients entering the Clinic.

Based in East Melbourne, the FCC is Australia’s first private clinic established to provide
women with-ascess to high quality and safe termination of pregnancy, contraception, family
planning and reproductive healthcare. For more than 20 years anti-abortion protestors stood
outside the entrance to the Clinic, verbally and physically intimidating patients and staff
meimbeirs oiv a daily basis.

3 This is restated in the Explanatory Memorandum to the Bill, p.11

4 https:/iwww.smh.com.au/politics/nsw/abortion-clinic-safe-access-zones-become-law-in-nsw-20180607-
p4zk18.html

5 https:/iwww.premier.vic.gov.au/safe-access-zones-to-protect-womens-right-to-medical-privacy-and-dignity/

6 See for example https:/iwww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/about/media-centre/media-statements/2015/judgment-
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

[n conjunction with commencing these legal proceedings, Maurice Blackburn worked closely
with the HRLC, community members, staff from the FCC, women’s rights organisaticns and
Victorian politicians to highlight the need for safe access laws across the state.

Although the case itself was not successful, we were able to help garner crucial momentum
for legislative change in Victoria.

Since coming into operation in May 2016, Victorian safe access zone lggislation has had a
significant and beneficial impact for both patients and staff members of termination services.
For the first time in two decades, patients have been able to access the Clinic free from
harassment, and staff members have been able to arrive at work withoti fear for their safety.

Despite the success of these laws in preventing the harassmerit and intimidation of patients
and staff members of termination services, one anti-abortion protestor is seeking to
challenge the constitutional validity of the Victorian legislation. Maurice Blackburn is acting
for the FCC in proceedings currently before the High Couit of Australia, in which we argue
that laws to prevent such infringements of privacy, wellheing and dignity within safe access
zones constitute a legitimate restriction on freedom of expression. The FCC has been
granted leave {o appear as amicus curiae.

iii. Victorian case study — how the iiitroduction of safe access zone
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
who had been repeatedly verbally abused, stalked and harassed.

Maurice Blackburn draws the Committee’s attention to the experience of Dr Susie Allanson,
who worked at the FCC as a Clinical Psychologist for twenty-six years, before and after
Victoria implemented safe access zones:

Case Study

Dr Susie Allanson worked at the FCC as a Clinical Psychologist for twenty six years, retiring
in June 2017.

Prior to the introduction of the safe access laws, she would arrive at work early in order to
avoid the group of anti-abortion protestors who would picket outside the clinic’s front gate.
On occasion, she would drive home with the suspicion of being followed, and developed a
habit of drivinig past her own house as a precaution.

Regularly she would see women arriving at the clinic visibly distressed by their contact with
protesiors. i her words:

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
stressful situation, the behaviour of the protestors left them noticeably shaken. We'd have to
spend a lot of extra time reassuring them, making sure they felt safe and calming them down
before we were able to begin providing them with the medical care they were actually there
fo receive.

When the behaviour was particularly intrusive and patients were arriving for their
appointments scared and crying we would call the police. Over the years, the police secured
convictions against the protestors for assault, obscenity, threat to kill and-even murder but
this made no difference.

After my colleague Steve Rogers was killed at the Clinic by an anti-abortion protestor in 2001
it became particularly stressful arrive at work each morning and see them standing at the
entrance; their presence felt like a trigger reminding me of what had happened that day.

When the safe access zone legislation came in we didn’t nead to cail the police anymore; the
behaviour stopped. This was so freeing for staff and patients — it meant we could focus on
our job and the women accessing our services could airive without fear of harassment.

Safe access zones work where other legal protections fail.

The introduction of safe access zones in Victoria has meant women and staff no longer have
a target on their back entering the Clinic, and women no longer carry the heavy burden of
being publicly shamed for seeking medical assistance.

Securing safe access zones is about more than jiist protecting the safety, dignity and privacy
of women accessing health care facilities-and the ability for staff members to arrive at work
each day without feeling afraid; it speaks volumes to our capacity as a society to genuinely
address inequalities for women.’

iv. Safe access zones as essential to ensuring workplace safety

The right to a safe workplace is furnidamental to the Australian industrial relations system, and
our way of life. '

For a considerable time, @mployers have borne a responsibility to provide a safe working
environment. However, a5 detailed in the case study above, premises offering termination
services often struggie to protect staff from the actions of protesters, which at the very least,
regularly cause stafi to-experience feelings of fear, intimidation, anxiety and anger.

Anti-abortion protesters engage in obstructive and abusive behaviour that at times amounts
to assault/ Most significantly, on 16 July 2001, Steven Rogers, a security guard at the FCC,
was shot arid killed by anti-abortion activist Peter James Knight, in full view of staff and
patierits. Armed with a gun, ammunition and kerosene, Peter Knight later spoke of his
intention to massacre the 15 staff and 26 patients who were present at the Clinic.

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
remind the Committee that the introduction of safe access zones is equally about ersuring
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

However we are seriously concerned that the Bill as currently drafted will not adequately
prevent conduct likely to cause harm. As currently drafted, behaviour that may not be
‘reasonably likely to deter’ a patient from accessing termination services but is nevertheless
distressing, or breaches their right to privacy and dignity rmay be permitted. This outcome is
clearly incompatible with the purported purpose of the safe access zones as set out in Part 4
of the Bill.3

Maurice Blackburn is also concerned that establishing whether or not a person has engaged
in ‘prohibited conduct’ will be very difficult as it varies depending on the particular experience
of each patient. This is likely to make the laws problenatic to enforce.

Furthermore, it will be difficult for a patient to adeqjuately prove whether certain intimidating
behaviour is likely to deter them from accessing & service, and the process of having to do so
is likely to be detrimental to their well-being.

The imposition of this high bar is also likeiy to result in reluctance by police to prosecute
persons who engage in intimidating behaviour within safe access zones.

Recommendation 1: The Bill shouid be amended to prohibit certain conduct without the
additional need to establish the impact on the victim, in line with other safe access zone
legislation in Australia, such @g Vigctoria.

A more detailed analysis of Part 4 of the Bill’s provisions and suggested amendments are
provided below.

vi. Reiiecticns on Part 4 of the draft legislation and suggested
aimentments

Maurice Blackburn has conducted a comparison of the Bill's safe access zone provisions and
equivalent legislation in New South Wales, Victoria, Tasmania, the Australian Capital
Territory and the Northern Territory.

We offei ihe following observations:

7 https:/iwww.girc.qld.gov.au/__data/assets/pdf_file/0004/576166/qirc-report-76-2018-final.pdf p.187 - 188

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

That the definition of “termination services premises” as provided forin section 13 of the
Bill be amended by:

i. removing “ordinarily” from the definition; or,

ii. replacing it with the definition contained in the equivalent NSW legislation to
include “any premises at which medical services relating to aspects of
human reproduction or maternal health, including termination, are provided,
but does not include a pharmacy”®.

Section 14 - Meaning of safe access zone

We are concerned that allowing the safe access zorne radius to be set by regulations makes
it vulnerable to reduction by future governments to an extent that it is rendered ineffectual.

The safe access zone radius should also factor iripotential attempts by anti-abortion
protestors to stop patients entering clinics by accosting them at pedestrian access points.

We suggest the following adjustments:
Recommendation 3:
Sections 14 (1)(b) to (4) be removed, and replaced with:

“(b) within nolless than 150m of:
(iyany-part of the premises; or
(iiy a pedestrian access point to a building that houses the
premises.

(2) A regulation miay prescribe a distance greater than 150m for stated termination
services pramises.

(3) The Minister may recommend to the Governor in Council the making of a
regulation-under subsection (2) if satisfied that, having regard to the location of the
premises; a prescribed distance of 150m is insufficient to achieve the purpose of this
partin relation to the premises.”

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

9 s 98A Public Health Act 2010 (NSW)
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* entering or leaving a termination services premises;
s requesting or undergoing a termination; or
* performing or assisting in the performance of, a termination”

will significantly limit the type of harmful conduct that may be successfully prosecuted under
this law.

The goal of the proposed section is to ensure patients can access health care facilities
unhindered by anti-choice protestors, whose tactics range from aggressive abusz to the
offering of prayer and display of photos of late term foetuses.™

Maurice Blackburn is concerned that such behaviour may not be considéered “reasonably
likely to deter a patient from entering or leaving the premises, or requesting or'undergoing an
abortion, or to deter a medical provider from performing or assisting in a termination”; but it
still may be highly distressing to the recipient.

We are concerned that the inclusion of this high bar may have the unintended consequence
of allowing certain behaviours intended to be captured by section 15 io lawfully occur.

We offer the following suggestion:
Recommendation 4:
That section 15 (1) be replaced with:

15 Prohibited conduct in safe access zones
(1) A person’s conduct in the safe access zone for termination services premises
is prohibited conduct if the conduct--

(a) in relation to a person accessing, attempting to access, or leaving
termination services premises, besetting, harassing, intimidating,
interfering with, {hireatsning, hindering, obstructing or impeding that
person by any means; or

(b) subject to subsection (4), communicating by any means in relation to
abortions in‘a manner that is able to be seen or heard by a person
accessing, attenipting to access, or leaving premises at which abortions
are providediand is reasonably likely to cause distress or anxiety; or

(c) interfaering with or impeding a footpath, road or vehicle, without
reasioniable excuse, in relation to premises at which abotrtions are
provided; or

(d) is #'protest in relation to terminations that is able to be seen or heard by
2y person accessing, or attempting to access, termination services
premises”"!

10 See for exampie: https://www.news.com.auflifestyle/real-life/news-life/woman-begs-christian-protester-to-leave-
her-alone-qutside-queensland-abortion-clinic/news-story/d209¢09¢1 1a5d8df9a66db6e44096167,
https://www.couriermail.com.au/questnews/city/anti-abortionists-stand-their-ground-over-contronting-image-on-
sign/news-siory/042eecdfd262345938883ebe15467b71, hitps://www.watoday.com.au/national/western-
australia/push-for-safe-zones-around-abortion-clinics-after-employees-called-murderers-20180223-hOwkms. htm!
1 This suggestion comes from the Tasmanian legislation, and recognises that protestors outside the safe access
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
Tasmanian safe access zone legislation.'?

As stated at section iv of this submission above, section 15 of the Bill should be amended to
prohibit certain conduct without the additional need to establish the impact on the victim. This
will promote consistency in safe access zone legislation across Australia.

In our experience, and as documented in the case study of Dr Susie Allanson above, fhiose
who protest at termination services premises often do so repeatedly, despite police cautions
and previous charges. As such, we recommend the foliowing:

Recommendation 5:

That an addit\ional provision be inserted into section 15 of the Bill providing for a higher
penalty for serial offenders via the insertion of a new section 15 (3):

“for a second or subsequent offence—200 penaity units or imprisonment for
18 months, or both.""

Section 16 - Recording persons in or near terminaticn services premises

For clarity, and to ensure the privacy of persons who are patients or employees/contractors
of a termination services premises, we recommend;

Recommendation 6:
That section 16 (1) (a) be amended to read:
“is an audio or visual recording of a person within a safe access zone;”

" For the same reasons provided in support of Recommendation 5, above, in relation to
penalties regarding audio and visuai recerdings, we recommend:

Recommendation 7:

That the Committee consider a higrier penalty for repeat offenders for the offences created
by sections 16 (2) and (3), Viz‘thie insertion of a new s16 (4) which reads:

“for & second or subsequent offence—200 penalty units or imprisonment for
18 imanths, or both."™

To provide staff with certainty that visual or audio recording of persons engaging in prohibited
conduct within safe access zones is lawful, we recommend the insertion of an example after
section 16 (3).{c), similar to the example provided under section 16 (3) (b) of the Bill.

Recommendation 8:

That ‘anexanple be provided in section 16 (3) (c) be inserted, with words to the effect of:

12 51858 of the Public Health and Wellbeing Act 2008 (Vic) and s 9 of the Reproductive Health (Access to
Terminations) Act 2013 (Tas).

13 This proposed clause is drawn from ss 98C(b), 98D(b) and 98E(b)

14 This proposed clause is drawn from ss 98C(b), 98D(b) and 98E(b)

Page 9

RTI Document No. 309 of 322



“it may be reasonable excuse for the occupier of the premises to distribute a
restricted recording of another person without the other person’s consent to staff
and contractors of the premises, or to police, for security purposes’.

To provide staff and operators of termination services with certainty regarding steps they can
take to secure the premises, we recommend the insertion of a new clause in section’'16
which explicitly permits the operation of security cameras.
Recommendation 9:
That a new clause be inserted below section 16 (4) which reads:
“Subsections (2) and (3) do not apply to the operation of a securily camera, for
security reasons only, by or on behalf of a person a person operating a termination
services premises, or premises adjust to or near such a premises”®
vii. The importance of adopting gender neutral language:
Maurice Blackburn commends the Queensland Governmerit for-its commitment to LGBTI
equality. Maurice Blackburn believes it is important that the proposed legislation protects all
people who may become pregnant. We therefore recoitimend that references to ‘women’ in
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

Allanson to answer questions and elakicrate on our insights.

Yours faithfully,

CTPI - Personal Information CTPI - Personal Information
Sarah Atkinson Katie Robertson
Principal Senior Associate
Maurice Blackburn Maurice Blackburn

15 This proposed clause is drawn from s 98E(3)(a) of the Public Health Act 2010 (NSW).
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Megan Lederhose

From: Evan Moorhead

Sent: Thursday, 28 June 2018 3:41 PM
To: Tom Kenny

Subject: FW: Wage theft

Evan Moorhead
N7 Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MP

A Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade
Q g P 07 3719 7013 MCTPI - Personal Information
RUBAT AT TIDFLTS 1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
Government

CTPI - Personal Information

From: Jade Thompson |
Sent: Thursday, 28 June 2018 3:36 PM

To: Evan Moorhead <Evan.Moorhead @ministerial.qld.gov.au>
Subject: RE: Wage theft

At this stage it's the Plumbers, Meaties, TWU, UV, AMWU and Together but | understand he was also intending to
speak to the AWU this week.

Jade Thompson | National Media Manager

CTPI - Personal Information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brisbane QLD 4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm-certified to the international 1ISO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please censiderthe environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential.aridiintended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this enail is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information-irrany \way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: http:/iwww.mauriceblackburn.com.aulprivacy-
policy.aspx

From: Evan Moorhead [maiito:Evan.Moorhead@ministerial.gld.gov.au]
Sent: Thursday, 28 Juie 2018 3:33 PM

To: Jade Thompson

Subject: Wage theft

Hi Jade,
Which unions are Giri representing at the Wage Theft Inquiry?

Evan
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Evan Moorhead
e N3 Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MP

&4 % Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade

g - P 073719 7013 MCTPI - Personal Information
EXTTT S S MV 1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
Government

This email, together with any attachments, is intended for the named recipient(s) only; and-may centain privileged
and confidential information. If received in error, you are asked to inform the sender as quickly as possible and
delete this email and any copies of this from your computer system network.

If not an intended recipient of this email, you must not copy, distribute or take any action(s) that relies on it; any
form of disclosure, modification, distribution and /or publication of this email is also prohibited.

Unless stated otherwise, this email represents only the views of the sender and not the views of the Queensland
Government. '

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
Don O’'Rorke, Consolidated Property
Paul Venus, Holding Redlich Lawyers
Rhys Turner, APPEA

Wes Ballantyne, Transurban

Chelsey Drake, Partner Allens

Laura O’Brien, Deloitte

Leisel Moorhead, QIC

Simone Desmarchelier, Director QIC
Karla Fraser, Partner-Aiicris

Franki Ganter, Paitner Allens

Mike Kissane, Lead Partner, DAE
Steve Kanowski, Partner, DAE

Basil K, Cubic Transportation
Nicholas Ng, ALiens

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

Graham Moloney, Queensland Teachers Union
Gary Bullock UV

Health

Michelle Trute, Diabetes Queensland

Beth Mohle, Queensland Nurses Union

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

fig Evan Moorhead
N Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MP
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Megan Lederhose

From: Evan Moorhead

Sent: Friday, 7 September 2018 4:11 PM

To: Ben Hubbard; James Sullivan

Subject: RE: Maurice Blackburn submission to the Qld Termination of Pregnancy Bill 2018

Thanks Ben, much appreciated as always.

Evan Moorhead
Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk MP
Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade

CTPI - Personal

P 07 3719 7013 M Information

e 1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
Government

From: Ben Hubbard -~ Persenatinformation

Sent: Friday, 7 September 2018 11:12 AM

To: Evan Moorhead <Evan.Moorhead @ministerial.gld.gov.au>; James Sullivan
<James.Sullivan@ministerial.qld.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Maurice Blackburn submission to the Qld Terminatien of Pregnancy Bill 2018

Evan, Jimmy

| wanted to get this on to your radar. This submission has gon to the Health Communities etc C'tee of the Parliament
and we expect it to get a bit of profile.

We've got a significant history with the same issua dowry south.

Let me know if you or any of the colleagues want a briefing from our experts. It may also be something AGD want to
get across too.

Kind regards

Ben

From: Katie Robertson
Sent: Wednesday, 5 Septermber 2018 12:34 PM

CTPI - Personal Information

To: Ben Hubbard CTP!- Fersenal information Liberty Sanger

Cc: Jennifer Kanis CTP!- Personai Information Sarah Atkinson CTPI - Personal Information

Paloma Cole [£T7'- Persenatinformation Michelle Wright CTP! - Personal Information Jade
Thom pson CTPT- Personal Information ) Giri Siva r.amanCTPI - Personal Information

Josh Bornstein CTPi - Personal Information Peter Newllng CTPI - Personal Information

CTFi - Personal Information

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

We made a deliberate decision to limit the scope of our submission to the Bill’s safe access zone provisions. Given
our previous history acting on behalf of the Fertility Control Clinic in Melbourne and involvement in pushing for
legislative change in Victoria (and other states re similar legislation) we felt this was where we could best value add.

In a nutshell, the position we take in the submission is —

* We commend the Qld government for introducing law reforms targeted to ensure patienis can access health
care and termination services safely;

e Safe access zones are important not only for patients — but also staff of health care faciiities. This is a
workplace safety issue;

* Although we welcome the inclusion of safe access zones in the draft legislation, we aie concerned that the
Bill as currently drafted will not adequately prevent conduct likely to cause harm.

There has been a fairly tight turn-around for this submission. The Committee will be condtcting public hearings next
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
www. mauriceblackburn.com.au

Maurice Blackburn is a leading Australian law firm certified to the international 1SO 9001:2008 quality standard.
We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended sclely fifie use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohihited.if you have received this email in efror please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additivnarintornation regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy poticy, click here: hitp:/fwww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx

From: Katie Robertson
Sent: Wednesday, 5 September 2618 i1:54 AM
To: heaiin@pariiament.gid.gov.au' sheaith@pariiameni.gid.gov.au>
Cc: Sarah Atkinson €771 - Persoril Infemetion Paloma Cole
Newling CTPI - Personal Informaion |

Subject: Maurice Blackizurn submission to the Termination of Pregnancy Bill

CTPI - Personal Information

Peter

Dear Sir / Madany,
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

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. lryou are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sendei-by-reply email, delete the email, destroy any printed
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way. For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy poticy, click here: hitg:/fwsw. mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx
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Megan Lederhose

o

From: Peter Nibbs

Sent: Thursday, 13 December 2018 1:35 PM
To: Evan Moorhead

Subject: RE: Royal Commission Implementation
Thanks

From: Evan Moorhead

Sent: Thursday, 13 December 2018 1:27 PM

To: Geoff Breusch <Geoff.Breusch@ministerial.gld.gov.au>; Peter Nibbs <Peter.Nibhs@rninisterial.qld.gov.au>;
Denise Spinks <Denise.Spinks@ministerial.qld.gov.au>; Greg Fowler <Greg.Fowler@ministerial.qld.gov.au>
Subject: Royal Commission Implementation

FYl

Maurice Blackburn are releasing a report on State Govt implementatiori of recomimendations tomorrow to coincide
with the 12 month anniversary of the report.

Qld gets at B- and is middle of the pack.

Evan Moorhead
Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk iVIP
Premier of Queensland and Minister-for Trade

P 07 3719 7013 M/~ Fersonal

P 1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
Government
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Megan Lederhose

st

From: Evan Moorhead

Sent: Monday, 30 July 2018 3:15 PM

To: Chris Perkins; Sharon Durham; Katelyn Dougherty
Subject: RE: Wage theft sub

Note the MB submission at page 11 about public servants and the QIRC

Evan Moorhead
Office of the Hon. Annastacia Palaszczuk IVIP
Premier of Queensland and Minister for Trade

P 073719 7013 MCTPI - Personal Information

b 1 William Street Brisbane QLD 4000
Queensland PO Box 15185 City East QLD 4002
Government

From: Evan Moorhead

Sent: Friday, 27 July 2018 5:59 PM

To: Chris Perkins <Chris.Perkins@ministerial.gqld.gov.au>; Sharon Durham <Sharon.Durham@ministerial.gld.gov.au>;
Katelyn Dougherty <Katelyn.Dougherty@ministerial.gld.gov.au>

Subject: Fwd: Wage theft sub

Evan Moorhead

Begin forwarded message:

n CTPI - Personal Information

From: "Jade Thompson
To: "Evan Moorhead" <Evan.Mooriiead@ministerial.qld.gov.au>
Cc: "Ben Hubbard" CTPI - Personal Information

Subject: Wage theft sub

Evan,
Here's a copy of our wage theft’sub for your information.
Cheers,

Jade.

Jade Thompson ) National Media Manager

CTPI - Persoral information

Maurice Blackburn Lawyers
Level 8, 179 North Quay, Brishane QLD 4000
www.mauriceblackburn.com.au

(x5 |5 |

Maurice Blackburn is a feading Australian law firm certified to the international 1SO 9001:2008 quality standard.
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We are proud to be carbon neutral. Please consider the environment before printing this email.

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom it is addressed. if you are not the intended recipient, any use,
dissemination, forwarding, printing or copying of this email is strictly prohibited. If you have received this email in error please notify the sender by reply email, delete the email, destroy any printe
copy and do not disclose or use its information in any way, For additional information regarding Maurice Blackburn's privacy policy, click here: hitp:/Avww.mauriceblackburn.com.au/privacy-
policy.aspx
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Pages 321 through 322 redacted for the following reasons:

s.68(4)(c) - document is subject to copyright provisions - access by inspection only.





